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General Satellite Corporation Limuted

Report of the board of Directors

The Board of Directors presents its report and the audiied consolidated financial statements of
General Satellite Corporation Limited (the Group) for the year ended 31 December 2012

Principal activities

The principal activity of the group during the year was the development, production and trading in
high tech electronic parts and equipment

Review of current position, future developments and sigmificant risks

General Satellite Corporation Group 1s a global telecommunications group that specializes in the
creaton and development of imnovative projects, providing solutions for the international digital
television market, develops and distributes conditional access modules for set top boxes and for
diguital TV set, retailing of electronic component and digital TV recewvers The Group comprises 37
companies world-wide, the largest ones beng OJSC “Concern Innovational Technologies”,

Neotton S A, General Satellite Group AG, General Satellite Research and Development Ltd and
Extended Secure Technologies BV

0JSC “Concern Innovatronal Technologies 1s a private Russian group of companies that specializes
m designing and manufacturing of digital TV set-top-boxes, software and additional user services,
takes part n large broadcasting projects in Russia, and 1s also engaged with innovative
development in the north-western terrtories of Russia The Group mainly sells s products and
services to the Russian market and also exports to Europe and Asia The group comprises 24
subsidiaries acqmired mamly in prior years The mamn share of the Holding’s assets in Russia 1s

concentrated 1n 1ts manufacturing sector, which constitutes the main part of the General Satellite
Group assets

As of 2012, the Group of Companies comprises 6 plants, 3 processing enterprises, 18 entities of
various specialization — service maintenance of the cutput products, call-center, developers of the
recetver hardware and software, consulting firms, located n different regions of Russia, 1n
particular, Samnt Petersburg, Kaliningrad region, Pskov region, Ulyanovsk city In 2012 the
following plants constitute the manufacturing units of the Group of Companies

AlMet, JSC - a plant speciahizing 1n manufacturing of satellite antennas,

Research and Production Enterprise “CTS”, JSC — a plant specializing in manufacturing of TV
receivers and cards for any equipment,

Prankor, LLC - a plant specializing in manufacturing of TV-antennas and receiver cases,

First Cardboard Factory, LLC - a plant specializing in the production of package and corrugated
board,

White Key House-Building Factory, LLC — a plant specializing in modular house construction,
GS-Nanotech, JSC — a plant speciahizing 1n the production of microelectronics (manufacture of

microprocessors 45 nm and 4-ply cards) opened 1n 2012 and comprising a nanotechnology research
center

In 2013 the Group plans to open the seventh plant specializing 1n added-value timber processing —
Sudoma Timber Yard, LLC

The group of campanies is the general investor in “Technopohis GS” 1n Gusev, a radio-electronic
cluster located in Kalimingrad region, representing the largest European innovative production
cluster. The Group’s main focus 1s to increase 1ts technological participation 1in broadcasting
projects all around the world using its own technology, to increase its own production facilities and
to develop projects based on new breakthrough technologres
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In 2012 the Group OJSC “Concern Innovational Technologies increased its revenue by 42%
mainly due to the growth of output products, first and foremost, at the Research and Production
Enterprise “CTS”, JSC as a result of increase in demand for digital subscriber receivers In
particular 1ts revenue grew from 49 million euro to 70 miilion euro Pursuant to the results of the
year 2012, the Group of Companies made losses in the amount of 14,623 thousand euro, n
comparison with profits received in 2011 1n the amount of 3,171 thousand euro The losses were
generated as a result of implementation of new activity lines, which in 2012 were still under
development, representing certain manufacturing capacities that are not yet operated or are still
under construction

Neotion S A 1s a French public company estabhished 1n January 2000 and listed since June 2006 on
Alternext Euronext Panis (ALLNEQ code) Neotion’s main focus 1s the design and development of
new chipset technologies of cutting edge Conditional Access Modules for use by company
operators as well as for retail customers wishing to implement company range of chipsets or core
modules within theiwr Set-Top-Box solutions Neotion 1s primarily active in Asia and Europe and
more modestly 1n France and products include Chipsets, CAM security modules, MPEG-4 to
MPEG-2 transcoding modules as part of the ‘Pocket’ family which covers all PCMCIA format
reception products and Subsystems 1 e electronic cards certified by security providers and ready to
be integrated by OEM partners and services

During 2012 the company launched a record of 20 new products, representing a 53% increase on
the previous year reporting The new products launched together with the products launched during
2011 has allowed the company to sell nearly 50% more CAM products iz 2012 than in the previous
year

The sales of Neotion’s secure CAM DVB-CI and CI Plus products grew due to new contracts and
the new range of products Neotion launched a new product range with Irdeto, the Cloaked CI
CAM The security of this solution 1s protected with the highest performance of Neotion chipset
These umque products doesn’t need any smartcard and for full performance This technology has
opened new markets, especially outside the EEC The first CAM has been launched in the summer
2012 and has been followed by 2 others in November New projects with this technology will
continue to be developed and launched 1n 2013 First Advanced VOD CAM deployed in the world
STOFA — the Damsh Pay TV operator and NEOTION teamed - up for the development of an
ambitious and mnovative solution for the reception of Broadcasted linear Premium HD TV
programs and on demand services (such like VOD, access to Catch up TV contents and interactive
services) without neither set-top-boxes nor Smart Cards the project of an Advanced CI PLUS
VOD CAM was launched as an important key device of the strategy of making i1t easy to be a
STOFA’s subscriber

In 2012, Neotion also expanded its range of professional CAM products, notably with the Irdeto
conditional access module These products allowed Neotion to approach new operators before
developing major public volume-generating products for them This professional CAM strategy
will be expanded to other conditional access modules 1n 2013

The company's turnover for 2012 amounted to EUR 34,854 million (2011 — EUR 37,362 million)
The result for the year 2012 reveals a gain of EUR 2,391 million compared with a gain of €3,443
million for the previous year

General Satellite Research and Development Ltd The principal activity of the company 1n the year
under review was that of developing software and design decumentation for satellite receiver
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Overall turnover of the Group for 2012 amounted to EUR 2 million (2011 — EUR 12 million) Drop
1s due to change n business activities that took place i 2012, the company 1s now concentrating
more on provision of services instead of reselling electronic parts and equipment

The company 1s gomng to widen 1ts business activity and conclude new long term contracts with
such companies as Samsung and Humax New prospects such as developing software for
television are included in the main business plan The management of the company 1s going to
mcrease turnover and propose new products to the market with value for money characteristics

Extended Secure Technologies BV 1s formed in the year 2010 as a research and development

company n The Netherlands developing a range of new products and services for introductron to
Pay TV and other media customers globally

Exset’s product development 1s imtially focused on next generation security solutions and
consumer based interactive applications Making use of the latest hardware technology and
software techniques, Exset will provide innovative and tightly integrated solutions for existing and
green field Pay TV operators wishing to differentiate their customer service in their markets and
have the ability to monetise thewr platforms in new ways

Sales and marketing focus will initially be tn the emerging economies based on broadcast DVB
standards for Cable, Satellite and Digital Terrestrial networks, but the technology plan anticipates
the deployment i emerging video streaming markets globally

In 2012 EXSET began selling to 1ts customers with additional customers coming on stream 1n
2013 Followmng the successful delivery of the first customer project in the second half of 2012,
additional commercial projects with customers wall be rolled out in 2013 leading to a substantial
increase wn subscriber coverage for the company’s products The company will engage more
closely with affiliate companies 1n the coming year in commercial projects within and outside the
group

General Satellite Group AG 1s a public company limited by shares that 1s registered in November
2011 1n canton Zug, Switzerland GS CH has been set up in November 2011 as a subsidiary of
General Satellite Corporation Ltd for the Jomnt Venture Business in developing countries

In its first year of operation General Satellite Group AG has mvestigated number of potential
mvestment opportunities in a number of countries and products It has completed three The first
mvesiment 15 an investment nto Royal Media Entertainment Corporation Ltd in Cambodia The
aim of this company 1s to become a leading player into the television broadcasting sector A second
investment was made nto a company mn DTH Pakistan (Private) Ltd in Pakistan with the aim to
hold potential future investment into the Pakistan television broadcasting sector A third investment

was made into the purchase of woodcutting machwnery with the aim to lease this equipment to a
Russian Timber Company

Goung forward the group aims to continue investing into its Cambodian, Pakistant and woodcutting
machinery business and will continue to evaluate new imvestment opportunities mn the worldwide
television broadcasting sector The Company has recorded a loss in 2012 of USD 2,905 thousand
(EUR 2,202 thousand) The loss has been budgeted as the 1ndustry shows a period of 5-6 years
until a company can get profitable
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Projects

In 2012 the Group of QJSC “Concern Innovational Technologies” there are continuous searches of
new materals for the production and design of new product types Research and scientific efforts
showed the first successful results in the production and usage of single-wall carbon nanotubes As
a result, at the end of 2012 a new enterprise appeared in the Group of Companies, Nanocarbon
Matenals, LI.C intended to support further development of this activity and the usage of this
matenal for industial purposes The enterprise operates 2 Byelorussian instaflations with capacity

of 500 g/hour each The laboratory continues researching the quahty of obtainable nanomaterials
and examining the ways and directions of their usage

The Company continues the implementation of its project aimed at creating a production complex
speciaizing i processing of sawtimber m the Pskov region on the basis of log-processing
equipment It was decided to enter the tumber processing market, so as to diversify the Holding’s

development areas The production of innovative high value added products constitutes one of the
holding’s key competences.

in 2012 nvestments in the amount of 8 million euro were made 1n the equipment of Dedovichi
Timber Company LLC, completing thus the first implementation phase of the project on the
creation of production facilities for added-value timber processing In the framework of continuing
project there were launched works on the construction of the Tumber Yard “Sudoma”™ LLC
specialized in the production of impregnated timber, applying thermal treatment technologies
which are umique 1n Russia The commussioning term of this plant 1s projected 1n 2014, while the
term for attaining 1ts full capacity —1n 2015

Development of Platform for so-called “Blue Bridge” NEOTION Blue Bridge® platform set a
secured wireless communication between the TV set and the Companion Device allowing the two
screens to combine usages, to communicate, to synchromize and to exchange data NEOTION Biue
Bridge® platform allows Broadcasters and TV channels to deploy multiple new services —
TV’Apps combiming TV and Mobiles usages NEOTION Blue Bridge® associates Technologic
Products and services and offers to Pay TV operators true perspective of development by deploying
a complete infrastructure gathering both access to TV channels and new mteractive services
combining TV, smartphones or tablets The large investment into the new Blue Bridge platform
and the development of its services should see the first product launched n the summer 2013. This
product will be the first of the new range of Advanced CAM’s

Swiss subsidiary - General Satellite Group AG aims to continue investing into 1ts Cambodian,
Pakistan1 and woodcutting machmery business and will continue to evaluate new nvestment
opportuntties in the worldwide television broadcasting sector

Financial Review

In 2012 the Group’s overall revenue increased by 6% from 102 million euro n 2011 to 107 million
euro m 2012 The growth 1s attributed to acquisitions of companies during the year as well as
organic growth The Group has recorded a loss in 2012 of EUR 20,824 thousand (2011 — profit
(restated) EUR 9,572 thousand) The losses were generated as a result of implementation of new
activity lines, which m 2012 were sull under development, representing certain manufacturing
capacities that are not yet operated or are still under construction The company management
monitors these lines and expects a steady profit growth
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Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Board of Directors 1s responsible for creating and monitoring the risk management system of
the Group The nisk management policy 1s revised regularly taking into account changes 1n the
market conditions and the development of the Group’s business The Group uses an effective nisk
management systern aimed at creating an effective control system in which every employee
understands his role and responsibilities, The Group 1s exposed to interest rate risk, credit risk,

liquidity risk and currency risk The risk management policies employed by the Group to manage
these risks are discussed below

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk 1s the risk that the value of financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes in
market interest rates Borrowings issued at variable rates expose the Group to cash flow interest
rate nsk Borrowings 1ssued at fixed rates expose the Group to fair value mterest rate risk The

Group's Management monitors the mterest rate fluctuations on a continuous basis and acts
accordingly

Credit risk

Credit nisk arises when a failure by counter parties to discharge their obligations could reduce the
amount of future cash inflows from financial assets on hand at the reporting date The Group has
policies 1n place to ensure that sales of products are made to customers with an approprniate credit
history and monitors on a continuous basis the ageing profile of its trade debtors

Liguidity risk

Liqudity nisk is the risk that anses when the matunity of assets and habilities does not match An
unmatched position potentially enhances profitability, but can also increase the risk of losses The
Group has procedures with the object of mimimizing such losses such as mawntaining sufficient cash

and other highly hquid current assets and by having available an adequate amount of commutted
credit facilities

Currency risk

Currency nisk 1s the nisk that the value of financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes n
foreign exchange rates Currency risk arises when future commercial transactions and recognized
assets and liabihities are denominated 1n a currency that 1s not the Group's measurement currency
The Group 1s exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various currency exposures primarily
with respect to the Russian Rouble, the US Dollar and the Euro The Group’s Management
monitors the exchange rate fluctuations on a continuous basis and acts accordingly

Risk associated with operating on emerging markets

The jurisdictions 1n which the Group might operate in the future may have less developed legal and
regulatory than more established economies The main risk that we face 1s that we operate 1n
countries which has unstable economic and pelitical environment There are also rapidly changing
legislation and litigation 1n the event of breach of contract by counterparties

Market risks

Changing industry structures, domestic laws, technology, competition or pricing volatility could
result in changes n the supply / demand
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Outlook

Overall, we are not disapponted with the financial result for the period under review Although
profits obtained in the previous years and in the year 2012 by other compames of the group could
not cover the losses n full, the losses were generated as a result of implementation of new activity
lines, which 1n 2012 were still under development, representing certain manufacturing capacities

that are not yet operated or are still under construction The company management monitors these
lines and expects a steady profit growth

In the current economic climate we continue to expand our operations, develop the busmess and
mcrease the value of the Group We are looking ahead, planning new ventures, developing new and
mnovative technologies and monitoring them to ensure these are implemented The technology
market 1s constantly evolving thus we place great emphasis in investment in research and
development and marketing activities to ensure we increase our profits and retain market share
Our objective 1s to develop a common strategy of the Group's business and promotion the brand of
General Satellite to Russian and mternational market - Europe, CIS countries as well as access to
markets of the Middle East, Latin America, Asia and Africa

Results and dividends
The results for the year are set out on page 16

Share capital
A bonus share 1ssue took place in the year that was distributed to shareholders out of reserves

Board of Directors
The member of the Company's Board of Directors as at 31 December 2012 and at the date of this

report 1s presented on page 3 The sole director was a member of the Board of Directors throughout
the year ended 31 December 2012

Statement of director’s respounsibilities

The director 1s responsible for preparing the Directors' Report and the group financial statements 1n
accordance with applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the director to prepare the group financial statements for each financial year
Under that law the director has elected to prepare the financial statements mn accordance with
International Financral Reporting Standards (IFRSs} as adopted by the EU Under company law the
director must not approve the financial statements unless he 1s satisfied that they give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the company and the group and of the profit or loss of the

company and the group for that period In preparing these financial statements, the director is
required to:

- select surtable accounting policies and apply them consistently,

- make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

- state whether applicable 1IFRSs as adopted by the EU have been followed, subject to any
material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements,

- prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it 1s inappropriate to
presume that the company will continue i business

The director 1s responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and
explain the company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
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position of the company and enable him to ensure that the financial statements comply with the
Companies Act 2006 He 1s also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and hence
for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities

In so far as the director 1s aware - there 1s no relevant audit informaton (information needed by
the company's auditors 1n connection with preparing their report) of which the company's auditors
are unaware, and

- the directorlhas taken all the steps that he ought to have taken to make aware of any relevant
audit informpgion and to establish that the company's aunditors are aware of that information

Thas report proved by the Board on 23 September 2013 and signed on its behalf by

10
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Report of the Independent Auditors to the Members of Genera) Satellite Corporation
Limited

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of General Satellite Corporation Limited
(the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2012, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity, the consolidated statement of cash flows and the related notes The financial
reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation 1s applicable law and International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union

This report 1s made solely to the company's members, as a body, 1n accordance with Chapter 3 of
Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to
the company's members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditors’ report and for
no other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility

to anyone other than the company and the company's members as a body, for our audit work, for
this report, or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of director and auditors

As explammed more fully in the Director’s Responsibilities Statement set out on pages 9 - 10, the
director 1s responsible for the preparation of the group financial statements and for bemng satisfied
that they give a true and fair view Our responsibility is to audit the financial statements n
accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those

standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's (APB's) Ethical Standards for
Auditors

Scope of the audit of the firancial statements

A description of the scope of an audit of financial statements 1s provided on the APB’s website at
www frc org uk/apb/scope/private cfim

Basis for qualified opinion on financial statements

We did not observe the counting of inventories with a carrying amount of EUR 4,462 thousand as
at | January 2011 because we were engaged as auditors of the Group only after this date We were
unable to satisfy ourselves as to those inventory quantities by alternative means As a result, we
were unable to determine whether adjustments might have been found necessary n respect of the
elements making up the statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and
statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2011

In addition the Group did not maintain adequate accounting records regarding inventories with a
carrying amount of EUR 1,005 thousand as at 31 December 2011 We were unable to verify those
inventories by alternative means As a result, we were unable to determine whether adjustments
might have been found necessary in respect of inventories as at 31 December 2011, and the
elements making up the statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and
statement of cash flows for the years ended 31 December 2011 and 31 December 2012

Qualified opinion on the financial statements
In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified
Optnion paragraph, the financial statements

- give a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s affairs as at 31 December 2012 and of the
Group's loss for the year then ended,

11
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- have been properly prepared in accordance with [FRSs as adopted by the European Union, and
- have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006

Emphasis of Matter — Going Concern

In forming our optnion, we have considered the adequacy of the disclosures made in the financial
statements concerning the group’s ability to continue as a going concern The group ncurred a net
loss during the year ended 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011 and, as of that date the
group’s habilities exceeded its total assets These conditions indtcate the existence of a material
uncertainty which may cast significant doubt about the group’s ability to continue as a going
concern The financial statements do not include any adjustiments that would result from a failure to
continue as a going concern Details of the circumstances relating to this emphasis of matter are
described in note 3b Our opinion 1s not qualified further n this respect

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opimon the mformation given 1n the Directors' Report for the financial year for which the
group financial statements are prepared 1s consistent with the financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
In respect solely of the limitation on our work relating to stock, described above

- we have not obtained all the information and explanations that we considered necessary for the
purposes of our audit, and

- we were unable to determine whether adequate accounting records have been kept

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006
requires us to report to you if, 1n our opimon-

- returns adequate for our audit have not been received from branches not visited by us, or
- the financial statements are not 1n agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
- certain disclosures of directors' remuneration specified by law are not made

\ QQg
Steven Landes (Senior Statutory Auditor) ~ \I\Q ”\ tn

for and on behalf of S H Landes LLP
Statutory Auditors

3rd Floor

Fairgate House

78 New Oxford Street

Londen

WCIiA 1HB

Date 23 September 2013
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General Satellue Corporation Limited
Consoldated Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2012

31 December 2012 31 December 2011 31 December 2010
000 EUR Nate {testated) (restated)

Assets

Property, plant and

equipment 12 70,406 47472 39,605
Intangible assets 13 15,820 14,110 12,058
Investment property 14 4,753 4,935 1,633

Trade and other recervables - 145

nvestments i equity
accounted investee 15 2,195 1,279 337

Other mvestments 16 538 761 692
Deferred tax assets 17 977 410 131

Non-current assets 94,689 68,967 54,601

B

i

i

i

i

i

i

i

i

l Inventonies 18 18,380 13,080 8,903
Other investments 16 18,253 37,266 34,332

I Current tax assets 89 83 33
Trade and other receivables 19 23,791 16,669 11,824
Prepayments 7,309 6,865 4,000

l Cash and cash equivalents 20 18,908 13,430 8,393

i

i

i

|

i

i

i

i

87,230 87,393 67,485

Assets held for sale —
Intangible assets 1,165 -

Current assets 88,395 87,393 67,485

Total assets 183,084 156,360 122,086

The consohdated statement of financial position 1s to be read in conjunction with the notes to, and forming,
part of, the consolidated financial statements set out on pages 20 to 63

13




General Satellite Corporation Limited
Consolidated Statement of Financial Posinon as at 31 December 2012

31 December 2012 31 December 2011 31 December 2010
'000 EUR Note (restated) (restated)
Equity
Share capital 176 58 58
Additional paid it capital 3,107 973 6,521
Share Prermum - 7 -
Other reserve (48) ©n 189
Retained earnings (9,679 (2,811) (9,834)
Equity attributable to
owners of the Company (6,444) (1,864) (3,066)
Non-controlling interests 1,469 11,518 2,864
Total equity 21 (4,975) 9,654 (202)
Liabihties
Loans and borrowings 22 95,379 67,998 74,491
Deferred tax habilities 17 1,440 1,480 1,452
Provisions 24 449 987 1,701
Trade and other payables 23 18 108 456
Non-current habilities 97,286 70,573 78,100
Loans and borrowings 22 45,639 48,692 17,635
Trade and other payables 23 42,556 25,879 26,257
Deferred income 2,493 1,405 201
Current tax habihities 85 157 95
Current habihties 90,773 76,133 44,188
Total habihhes 188,059 146,706 122,288
Total equity and habihties 183,084 156,360 122,086

These consfllidaged financial statements were authorised for 1ssue by the board of directors on 23 September
re gigned on its behalf by

Company registered No (04502928

The consolidated statement of financial position s to be read 1n conjunction with the notes to, and forming
part of, the consolidated financial statements set out on pages 20 to 63
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General Satellite Corporation Limited
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year ended 31 December 2012

000 EUR Note 2012 2011 (restated)
Revenue 7 107,252 101,703
Operating costs 0] (116,775) (98,971)
Other (expenses)/income, net 9 (3,944) 3,185
Results from operating activities (13,467) 5,917
Finance income 10 1,484 12,347
Finance costs 10 (14,820) (9,143)
Net finance costs (13,336) 3,204
Profit on disposal of investments 5,051 -
Share of profit of equity accounted investee

(net of Income tax) 15 842 1,003
{Loss)/profit before ncome tax (20,910) 10,124
Income tax benefit/(expense) 0 86 (552)
(Loss)/profit for the year (20,824) 9,572

Other comprehensive (loss)/income

Foreign currency translation differences 414 (458)
Foreign currency translation differences for

foreign operations - equity-accounted investees 74 108
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the

year, net of income tax 488 (350)
Total comprehensive (Joss) income for the

year (20,3306) 9,222
{Loss)/profit attributable to-

Owners of the Company (6,584) 7,023
Non-controlling interests (14,240) 2,549
(Loss)/profit for the year (20,824) 9,572

Total comprehensive (loss)/income
attributable to:

Owners of the Company (6,541) 6,750
Non-controlling interests (13,795} 2,472

Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the
year (20,336) 9,222

The consolidated statement of comprehensive mncome is to be read in conjunction with the notes to, and
forming part of, the consolidated financial statements set out on pages 20 to 63

15
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General Satellite Corporation Limuted
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 December 2012

*000 EUR Note 2012 2011 (restated)

Cash flows from operating activities

{Loss)/profit for the year (20,910) 10,124
Adustments for

Depreciation 8 7,437 4,848
Impairment losses 12 8,214 347
Loss/(gain}) on disposal of property, plant and

equipment 403 933
Profit on sale of investments (5,051) -
Income from derecognition of payables 9 (510) (295)
Net finance (income) / charges 10 13,336 (4,103)
Net foreign exchange loss 10 - 757
Write back provision on contingent Liabihities (470) -
Share of profit from equity accounted investees

(net of Income tax) 15 (342) (1,003)
Cash from operating activities before

changes in working capital and provisions 1,607 11,608
Change 1n inventories {10,290} (3,452)
Change 1n trade and other receivables (3,131) (5,931)
Change n trade and other payables 18,111 (1,071)
Provisions (68) 714)
Cash flows (used in)/from operations before

income taxes and mnterest paid 6,229 440
income tax paid {599) (969)
Interest paid (1,427) 2,557
Net cash (used in)/from operating activities 4,203 (3,086)

The consolidated statement of cash flows 1s 10 be read in conyunction with the notes to, and forming part of,
the consohidated financial statements set out on pages 20 to 63
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General Satellite Corporation Limited
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 December 2012

’000 EUR Note 2012 2011

Cash flows from investing activities

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and

equipment 626 687
Interest received 1,216 1,117
Acquusttion of property, plant and equipment (31,765 (14,000)
Acquisition of intangible assets (3,962) (450)
Acquisition of other investments - (11,414)
Acqusitron of subsidianies, net of cash acquired 6 1,803 (713)
Acqusitions of non controlling interests 5 -
Disposal of subsidiaries - 19
Disposal of other investments 19,562 8,161
Net cash used 1n investing activities (12,525) (16,593)
Cash flows from financing activities

Caputal contribution received 1,565 -
Proceeds from borrowings 49,878 37,797
Repayment of borrowings (33,555) (11,839)
Dhividends paid to non-controlling interest (4,093) (1,287)
Net cash from financing activities 13,795 24,671
Net increase 1n cash and cash equivalents 5,473 4,992
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 13,430 8,393
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash and

cash equivalents 5 45
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 20 18,908 13,430

The consolhdated statement of cash flows 1s to be read in conjunction with the notes to, and forming part of,
the consolidated financial statements set out on pages 20 to 63
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General Satellite Corporation Linuted
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2012

Background

Business environment and operations

General Satellite Corporation Limited 1s a himited company incorporated and domiciled 1in England
and Wales The consclidated financial statements of the Group as at and for the year compnise the
Company and its subsidiaries as at 31 December 2012 and the group’s interest 1n associates and
Jomtly controlled entities The Group primarily 1s involved in manufacture of high tech electronic
parts and equipment

The Group’s principal activity 1s production and assembly of digital TV receivers at plants located
in the Russian Federation The Group also provides technical support services The Group’s
products are sold outside of United Kingdom, with 83% of total revenue generated 1n the Russian
Federation, 14% 1n Asia and 3% 1n other parts of the world

Basis of preparation

Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International

Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”), as adopted by the European Union and as applied in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006

Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis, as modified by the
fair value measurement of certan items as disclosed in the accounting policies below

Functional and presentation currency

The Group compamies’ functional currency varies from one country to another These consolidated
financial statements are presented in Eure since the management beheves that this currency 1s
useful for the users of the consohdated financial statements

All financial information presented in Euro has been rounded to the nearest thousand

The assets and labilities of Group entities are translated into EURO at the exchange rate at the end
of the year Revenues and expenses are translated into EURO using rates approximating exchange
rates at the dates of the transactions The resulting exchange difference 1s recorded directly 1n the
foreign currency translation reserve in the other comprehensive income

Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of consohdated financial statements n conformity with IFRSs requires
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, Liabilities, income and expenses Actual
results may differ from those estimates

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and m any future periods
affected
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General Satellite Corporation Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements Jor the year ended 3} December 2012

Information about critical judgments 1n applying accounting polictes that have the most sigmificant

effect on the amounts recognised n the consolidated financial statements 1s ncluded 1n the
following notes

s Note 12 - useful hives of property, plant and equipment,
e  Note 17 — deferred tax assets,
* Note |8 —inventory obsolescence provisions

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resutting
in a material adjustment within the next financial year 1s included 1n the following notes

¢ Note 12 —mpairment of property, plant and equipment

Significant accounting policies

The accounting policies set out below have been apphed consistently to all pertods presented i
these consolidated financial statements, and have been applied consistently by Group entihies

Basis of consolidation

Business combinations

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method as at the acquisition date,
which 1s the date on which control 1s transferred to the Group Control 1s the power to govern the
financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities In assessing
controli, the Group takes into consideration potential voting rights that currently are exercisable

The Group measures goodwill at the acquisition date as
o The fair value of the consideration transferred, plus
¢ The recognised amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree, plus

o If the business combination 1s achieved in stages, the fair value of the pre-existing equity
interest 1n the acquire, less

¢ The net recognised amount (generally far value) of the identifiable assets acquired and
habulities assumed

When the excess is negative, a bargamn purchase gain ts recognised immediately in profit or loss

The consideration transferred does not include amounts related to the settlement of pre-existing
relationships. Such amounts are generally recognised in profit or loss

Transaction costs, other than those associated with the 1ssue of debt or equity secunties, that the
Group tncurs 1n connection with a business combination are expensed as incurred

Any contingent consideration payable 1s recognised at fair value at the acquisition date If the
contingent consideration 1s classifted as equity, 1t is not remeasured and settlement 1s accounted for

within equity Otherwise, subsequent changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration are
recognised 1n profit or loss

The Group measures non-controlling interest at its proportionate share of the recognmised amount of
the 1dentifiable net assets at the acquisition date
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General Satellite Corporation Linuted
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the vear ended 31 December 2012

Accounting for acquisitions of non-controlling interests

Acquisitions of non-controlling interests are accounted for as transactions with owners in their
capacity as owners and therefore no goodwill 1s recognised as a result Adjustments to non-
controlling interests ansing from transactions that do not involve the loss of control are based on a
proportionate amount of the net assets of the subsidiary

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group The financial statements of subsidiaries are
mcluded sn the consohdated financial statements from the date that control commences until the
date that control ceases The accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed when necessary
to align them with the policies adopted by the Group Losses applicable to the non-controlling
interests 1n a subsidiary are allocated to the non-controlling interests even 1f doing so causes the
non-controlling iterests to have a deficit balance

Acquisitions from entities under common control

Business combinations arising from transfers of interests in entities that are under the control of the
shareholder that controls the Group are accounted for at the date of transfer of shares to the Group
The assets and habihities acquired are recogmised at their carrying amounts i the IFRS financial
statements of the entities transferred If the acquired entity has previously not prepared IFRS
financial statements, the acquired entity prepares an opening balance sheet as part of the transition
to IFRSs at the beginning of the year the acquisition occurs The assets acquired and liabilities
assumed are then recognised at their book values determined 1n accordance with IFRSs on the date
of acquisition Any difference between the book value of net assets acquired and consideration paid
at acquisition date 1s recogmsed as a contribution from, or distribution to, the shareholders

Loss of control

Upon the loss of control, the Group derecognises the assets and habihties of the subsidiary, any
non-controlling interests and the other components of equity related to the subsidiary Any surplus
or deficit arising on the loss of control is recognised in profit or loss If the Group retains any
interest tn the previous subsidiary, then such interest 1s measured at fair value at the date that
control 1s lost Subsequently it 1s accounted for as an equity-accounted investee or as an available-
for-sale financial asset depending on the level of influence retained

Investments in associates (equity accounted investees)

Associates are those entities 1n which the Group has sigmificant influence, but not control, over the

financial and operating policies Significant influence 1s presumed to exist when the Group holds
between 20% and 50% of the voting power of another entity

Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity method and are recogmised initally at
cost The cost of the investment includes transaction costs

The consohidated financial statements include the Group's share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive mcome of equity accounted investees, after adjustments to align the accounting

policies with those of the Group, from the date that significant influence commences until the date
that significant influence ceases

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in an equity-accounted investee, the carrying
amount of that interest including any long-term investments, (s reduced to zero, and the recognition
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General Satellite Corporation Linuted
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2012

of further losses 1s discontinued, except to the extent that the Group has an obligation or has made
payments on behalf of the investee

Transactions eliminated on consolidation

Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised income and expenses arising from intra-
group transactions, are eliminated i preparing the consolidated financial statements Unreahsed
gams anising from transactions with equity-accounted 1nvestees are eliminated against the
investment to the extent of the Group’s interest in the investee Unrealised losses are eliminated 1n
the same way as unrealised gains, but only to the extent that there 1s no evidence of impairment

Going concern

At the balance sheet date, the Group had a deficit balance sheet of EUR 4,975 thousand (2011 —
surplus EUR 2,237 thousand), and the Group has recorded a net loss of 20,824 (2011 — profit
EUR 9,572 thousand) The group has managed to postpone the repayment of a significant debt that
was due 1n 2012 for at least one year but 1ts ability to continue as a going concern 1s dependent on
its ability to extend loan repayment periods and obtain additional finance to meet its obligations
The director continues to provide s support to the Group and considers that the Group 15 a gomg
concern and therefore has prepared financial statements on that basis

Foreign currency

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions 1n foreign currencies are translated to the respective functional currencies of Group
entities at exchange rates at the dates of the transactions Monetary assets and habilities
denominated 1n foreign currencies at the reporting date are retranslated to the functional currency at
the exchange rate at that date The foreign currency gain or loss on monetary items 1s the difference
between amortised cost 1n the functional currency at the beginning of the period, adjusted for
effective interest and payments during the period, and the amortised cost in foreign currency
translated at the exchange rate at the end of the reporting period.

Non-monetary items in a foreign currency that are measured based on hustorical cost are translated
using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction

Foreign currency differences arising 1n retranslation are recogmsed wm profit or loss, except for
differences arising on the retranslation of available-for-sale equity instruments which are
recogmsed in other comprehensive income

Financial instruments

Non-derivative financial assets

Non-derivative financial assets comprise debt securities, trade and other receivables, and cash and
cash equivalents

The Group mnitially recognises loans and receivables and deposits on the date that they are
originated All other financial assets are recognised imitially on the trade date at which the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
asset expire, or 1t transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows on the financial asset in a
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General Sateliste Corporation Lumited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2012

transaction 1n which substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are

transferred Any interest in transferred financial assets that 1s created or retained by the Group 1s
recognised as a separate asset or hability

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount presented 1n the statement of financial
position when, and only when, the Group has a legal right to offset the amounts and intends either
to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the hability simultaneously

The Group classifies non-derivative financial assets into loans and receivables category

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are a category of financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted n an active market Such assets are recogmsed mitially at farr value plus any
directly attributable transaction costs Subsequent to initial recognition loans and receirvables are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment losses

Loans and recewvables category comprise the following classes of financial assets other
mvestments as presented in Note 16, trade and other receivables as presented in Note 19, cash and
cash equivalents as presented in Note 20

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances, call deposits and highly hguid investments with

maturities of three months or less from the acquisition date that are subject to insignificant risk of
changes in their fair value

Non-derivative financial liabilities

The Group mitially recognises debt securities issued on the date they are origimated All other
financial habilities are mitially recognised on the trade date at which the Group becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument

The Group derecognises a financial habihty when its contractual obligations are discharged or
cancelled or expire

The Group classifies non-derivative financial liabilities nto the other financial habilties category
Such financial liabilities are recogmised mtially at fair value less any directly attributable
transaction costs Subsequent to wutial recognition, these financial habilities are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method

Other financial habilities comprise loans and borrowings and trade and other payables

Share capital
Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares are classified as equity Incremental costs directly attributable to 1ssue of ordinary
shares and share options are recognised as a deduction from equity, net of any tax effects

Repurchase, disposal and reissue of share capital (treasury shares)

When share capital recogmsed as equity is repurchased, the amount of the consideration paid,
which includes directly attributable costs, net of any tax effects, 1s recognised as a deduction from
equity Repurchased shares are classified as treasury shares and are presented in the reserve for
own shares When treasury shares are sold or retssued subsequently, the amount received 1s
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General Satellite Corporation Limited
Notes to the Consohdated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2012

recognised as an increase m equity, and the resulting surplus or deficit on the transaction 1s
presented in share premium

Property, plant and equipment

Recognition and measurement

items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated deprectation and
imparrment losses.

Cost includes expenditure that 1s directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset The cost of
self-constructed assets includes the cost of matenals and direct labour, any other costs directly
attributable to bringing the asset to a working condition for their intended use, the costs of
dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on which they are located, and
capitalised borrowing costs Purchased software that 1s integral to the functionahty of the related
equipment 1s capitalised as part of that equipment

When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful hves, they are
accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment s determined by
comparing the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment,
and 1s recognised net within other income/other expenses n profit or loss

Subsequent costs

The cost of replacing a component of an 1tem of property, plant and equipment 1s recognised n the
carrying amount of the item (f 1t 1s probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the
component will flow to the Group, and 1ts cost can be measured rehably The carrying amount of
the replaced component 1s derecogmsed The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property, plant
and equipment are recognised n profit or loss as incurred

Depreciation

Items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated from the date that they are instailed and are
ready for use, or in respect of internally constructed assets, from the date that the asset 1s completed
and ready for use Depreciation 15 based on the cost of an asset less its residual value Significant
components of individual assets are assessed and 1f a component has a useful hfe that 1s different
from the remainder of that asset, that component 1s depreciated separately

Depreciation 1s recogmised 1n profit or loss on a straight-lhine basis over the estimated useful lives of
each part of an item of property, plant and equipment, since this most closely reflects the expected
pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the asset Land is not
depreciated

The estimated useful lives of significant items of property, plant and equipment for the current and
comparative periods are as follows

¢ Buldings 5-30 years,
s plant and equipment 3-30 years,
+ fixtures and fittings 2-10 years
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General Satellite Corporation Linuted
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 3/ December 2012

Depreciation methods, useful lives and restdual values are reviewed at each financial year end and
adyusted 1f appropnate

Investment property

Investment property 1s property held either to earn rental income or for capital appreciation or for
both, but not for sale in the ordinary course of business, use in the production or supply of goods or
services or for administrative purposes Investment property 1s measured at cost

Depreciation 1s recognised in the income statement on a straight-line basis over the estimated
useful lives of each part of investment property, since this most closely reflects the expected pattern
of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the asset Land is not depreciated

Intangible assets

Research and development

Expenditure on research activities, undertaken with the prospect of gaining new scientific or
technical knowledge and understanding, is recogmised in profit or loss as incurred

Development activities mvolve a plan or design for the production of new or substantially
improved products and processes Development expenditure 1s capitalised only 1f development
costs can be measured reliably, the product or process 1s technically and commercially feasible,
future economic benefits are probable, and the Group ntends to and has sufficient resources to
complete development and to use or sell the asset The capitalised expenditure includes the cost of
materials, direct labour and overhead costs that are directly attributable to prepanng the asset for its
intended use, and capitalised borrowing costs Qther development expenditure 15 recognised 1n the
profit or loss as incurred

Capitalised development expenditure s measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses

Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets that are acquired by the Group, which have finite useful lives, are measured
at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure 1s capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits
embodied 1n the specific asset to which it relates All other expenditure, including expenditure on
internally generated goodwill and brands, 1s recogmnised n the profit or loss as mcurred

Amortisation

Amortisation 1s calculated over the cost of the asset, or other amount substituted for cost, less its
residual value

Amortisation 1s recognised 1n profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of
intangible assets, other than goodwill, from the date that they are available for use since this most
closely reflects the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the
asset The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative periods are as follows

e Software and licences 1-10 years
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General Satellite Corporation Linuted
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2012

Amortisation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year end and
adjusted 1f appropriate

Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of inventories 1s
based on the average cost principle, and includes expenditure incurred in acquining the inventories,
production or conversion costs and other costs incurred 1n bringing them to their exasting location
and condition In the case of manufactured inventories and work n progress, cost includes an
appropriate share of production overheads based on normal operating capacity

Net realisable value 1s the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the
estimated costs of completion and selling expenses

Deferred income from government grants

Grants are credited to deferred revenue Grants towards capital expenditure are released to the
profit and loss account over the expected useful life of the assets. Grants towards revenue
expenditure are released to the profit and loss account as the related expenditure 1s incurred

Impairment

Non-derivatve financial assers

A financial asset not carried at fair value through profit or loss 1s assessed at each reporting date to
determine whether there 1s any objective evidence that 1t 1s impaired A financial asset 1s impaired
if objective evidence indicates that a loss event has occurred after the imitial recogmition of the
asset, and that the loss event had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset
that can be estimated reliably

Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired can include default or delinquency by a
debtor, restructuring of an amount due to the Group on terms that the Group would not consider
otherwise, indications that a debtor will enter bankruptcy or economic condrtions that correlate
with defaults

The Group considers evidence of wmpairment for loans and recewvables at both a specific asset and
collective level All individually significant loans and receivables are assessed for specific
imparrment All individually significant loans and receivables found not to be specifically impaired
are then collectively assessed for any impairment that has been incurred but not yet 1dentified
Loans and receivables that are not individually significant are collectively assessed for impairment
by grouping together loans and receivables with similar risk characteristics

In assessing collective impairment the Group uses historical trends of the probability of default,
timing of recoveries and the amount of loss incurred, adjusted for management’s judgement as to
whether current economic and credit conditions are such that the actual losses are likely to be
greater or less than suggested by historical trends

An mpairment loss n respect of a financial asset measured at amortised cost is calculated as the
difference between 1its carrying amount, and the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the asset’s oniginal effective interest rate Losses are recognised in profit or loss and
reflected 1n an allowance account aganst loans and receivables Interest on the impaired asset
continues to be recognised through the unwinding of the discount When a subsequent event causes
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General Sateliite Corporation Linited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2042

the amount of impanrment loss to decrease, the decrease in impairment loss 1s reversed through
profit or loss

Non-financual assets

The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax
assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there 1s any indication of
impairment If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount 1s estimated An
impairment loss 1s recognised 1f the carrying amount of an asset or its related cash-generating unit
(CGU) exceeds 1ts esimated recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU 1s the greater of its value mn use and 1ts fair value less
costs to sell In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset or CGU For the purpose of impairment testing,
assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of
other assets or CGU

The Group’s corporate assets do not generate separate cash inflows and are utilised by more than
one CGU Corporate assets are allocated to CGUs on a reasonable and consistent basis and tested
for impairment as part of the testing of the CGU to which the corporate asset 1s allocated

Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss Impairment losses recogmsed n respect of
CGUs are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU
{group of CGUs), and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets m the CGU (group of
CGUs) on a pro rata basis

An impairment loss 1n respect of goodwill 1s not reversed In respect of other assets, impairment
losses recognised wn prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the
loss has decreased or no longer exists An impairment loss 1s reversed if there has been a change 1n
the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount An impairment loss 1s reversed only to the
extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, 1f no iImpairment loss had been recognised

Goodwill that forms part of the carrying amount of an investment m an equity accounted investee 15
not recognised separately, and therefore 1s not tested for impairment separately Instead, the entire
amount of the investment n an equity accounted investee 1s tested for impairment as a single asset
when there 15 objective evidence that the investment 1n an equity accounted investee may be
impaired

Employee benefits

Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan 1s a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed
contributions mto a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further
amounts Obligations for contributions to defined contmbution pension plans, including Russia’s
State pension fund, are recognised as an employee benefit expense 1n profit or loss 1n the periods
during which services are rendered by employees Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset
to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction 1n future payments 1s available Contributions to a
defined contribution plan that are due more than 12 months after the end of the period 1n which the
employees render the service are discounted to thewr present value
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General Satellite Corporation Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2012

Short-term benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed
as the related service 1s provided A liability 1s recognised for the amount expected to be paid under
short-term cash bonus or profit-sharing plans if the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee, and the
obligation can be estimated reliably

Provisions

A provision 15 recognised 1f, as a result of a past event, the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and 1t 1s probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation Provisions are determined by
discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments

of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability The unwinding of the discount 1s
recognised as finance cost

Revenue

Goods sold

Revenue from the sale of goods in the course of ordinary activities 1s measured at the fair value of
the consideration received or receivable, net of returns, trade discounts and volume rebates
Revenue 1s recognised when persuasive evidence exists, usually in the form of an executed sales
agreement, that the sigmificant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the
customer, recovery of the consideration 1s probable, the associated costs and possible return of
goods can be estimated reliably, there is no continuing management mvolvement with the goods,
and the amount of revenue can be measured rehably If 1t 1s probable that discounts will be granted
and the amount can be measured reliably, then the discount 1s recognised as a reduction of revenue
as the sales are recogrised

The timing of the transfers of risks and rewards may vary depending on the individual terms of the
sales agreement The most common terms are that transfer occurs when the goods are shipped from
the Group’s warehouse.

Services

Revenue from services rendered 1s recogmised wn profit or loss 1 proportion to the stage of
completion of the transaction at the reporting date The stage of completion s assessed by reference
to surveys of work performed

Other expenses

Lease payments

Payments made under operating leases are recogmsed 1n profit or loss on a straight-line basis over
the term of the lease

Research and development expenses and the corresponding tax eredit

Development expenses for the products marketed by the company are recorded as expenses for the
period 1n which they were incurred, and these grew to EUR 4,586 thousand for the last financial
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year {(based on the tax authority's calculation method for calculating research tax credit) Gross
salaries grew to EUR 4,235 thousand including social security costs

Under certain conditions these expenses are eligible for a tax credit recogrised 1n the fiscal year
during which the charges are recorded Where this cannot be recovered from a tax charge the tax
credit may be repaid from the fourth year following its being recorded

Since 1ts inception the company has benefited from a cumulative research tax credit of EUR10,141
thousand Taking account of the research projects undertaken during the year 2012, the company
recorded a research tax credit for 2012 of EUR 2,101 thousand

Finance income and costs

Finance mmcome comprises nterest imcome on funds invested, and foreign currency gain Interest
income 1s recognised as 1t accrues 1n profit or loss, using the effective interest method

Finance costs comprise (nterest expense on borrowings, unwinding of the discount on provisions,
share 1 profit/(loss) for the period of minornity shareholders in limited lability registered
companies, and impairment losses recognised on financial assets (other than trade receivables)

Borrowing costs that are not directly atinbutable to the acquisition, construction or production of a
qualifying asset are recognised in profit or loss using the effective interest method

Foreign currency gains and losses are reported on a net basis as either finance income or finance
cost depending on whether foreign currency movements are 1n a net gamn or net loss position

Income tax

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax Current tax and deferred tax are recognised
in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to a business combination, or 1tems recognised
directly 1 equity or in other comprehensive income

Current tax 1s the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year,
using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax
payable 1n respect of previous years Current tax payable also includes any tax lability arising from
the declaration of dividends

Deferred tax 1s recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes
Deferred tax 1s not recognised for

s temporary differences on the mitial recognition of assets or habilities 1n a transaction that 1s not a
business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss,

s temporary differences related to investments n subsidiaries 1o the extent that 1t 1$ probable that
they will not reverse in the foreseeable future, and

« taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill

Deferred tax 1s measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the temporary
differences when they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the reporting date

Deferred tax assets and habilities are offset 1f there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets and liabilities, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the
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same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax habilities and
assets on a net basis or therr tax assets and habilities will be realised simultaneously

A deferred tax asset 1s recogmsed for unused tax losses, tax credits and deductible temporary
differences, to the extent that it 1s probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which they can be utihsed Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced
to the extent that it 1s no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised

(s) Restatements

The parent company has received loans bearing interest at rates lower than commercial rates of
mterest These loans have not been fair valued in the past and therefore an exercise was carried out
at the year end to estimate their fair value The fair vales have been calculated as the present value
of all future cash receipts discounted using an estimated market interest rate for a similar loan The
restatement to fair value has led to an increase n interest payable and in fair value gains on imtial
recognition The adjustments have the following impact on prior years

Asat1111 Year ended 31 12 11
Reduction in borrowings 5,036 11,890
Increase 1n retained earmings 5,036 5,036
Increase 1n interest payable 2,244
Increase i fair value gains 9,098

Reserves have also been restated to reallocate a share premium arising in 2008 to retained earnings
and non-controlling interest The share premium reflects the premium on shares issued to settle a
hability n 2008 The adjustment has the following impact on prior years:

Asat 1111
Decrease 1n share premium 2,666
Increase 1n retained earnings 3,270
Decrease in non-controlling interest 604

4. New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

A number of new Standards, amendments to Standards and Interpretations are not yet effective as
at 31 December 2012, and have not been applied in preparing these consolidated financial
statements Of these pronouncements, potentially the following will have an impact on the Group’s
operations The Group plans to adopt these pronouncements when they become effective

o 1AS 28 (2011) Investments in Associates and Jomnt Ventures combines the requirements in [AS
28 (2008) and IAS 31 that were carried forward but not incorporated into IFRS 11 and IFRS
12 The amended standard will become effective for annual periods beginming of or after 1
January 2013 with retrospective application required Early adoption of IAS 28 (2011) 1s
permitted provided the entity also early-adopts IFRS 10, IFRS 11, IFRS 12 and IAS 27 (2011)
The Group has not yet analysed the likely impact of the new Standard on its financial position
or performance

s  Amendments to IFRS 7 Fmancial Instruments Disclosures - Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities contain new disclosure requirements for financial assets and liabilities that
are offset in the statement of financial position or subject to master netting arrangements or
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similar agreements The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after |

January 2013, and are to be applied retrospectively The Group has not yet analysed the likely
impact of the new Standard on its financial position or performance

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments will be effective for annual periods begmning on or after |
January 2015 The new standard 1s to be 1ssued 1n phases and 1s intended ultimately to replace
International Financial Reporting Standard 1AS 39 Funancial Instruments Recogmition and
Measurement The first phase of IFRS 9 was 1ssued in November 2009 and relates to the
classification and measurement of financial assets The second phase regarding classtfication
and measurement of financial liabilities was published 1in October 2010 The remaining parts of
the standard are expected to be 1ssued during 2013 The Group recognises that the new standard
introduces many changes to the accounting for financial instruments and 1s hikely to have a
sigmificant impact on Group’s consohidated financial statements The impact of these changes
will be analysed during the course of the project as further phases of the standard are 1ssued

The Group has not yet analysed the likely impact of the new Standard on its financial posttion
or performance

IFRS 10 Consolidated Fimancial Statements wll be effective for annual pertods beginnung on
or after 1 January 2013 The new standard supersedes IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate
Financial Staternents and SIC-12 Consolidation — Special Purpose Entities [FRS 10 introduces
a single control model which includes entities that are currently within the scope of SIC-12
Consohdation — Special Purpose Entities Under the new three-step control model, an investor
controls an investee when it is exposed, or has nights, to vanable returns from its involvement
with that mmvestee, has the ability to affect those returns through its power over that mvestee
and there 1s a link between power and returns Consolidation procedures are carried forward
from IAS 27 (2008) When the adoption of IFRS 10 does not result a change in the previous
consohdation or non-consolidation of an investee, no adjustments to accounting are required on
mmtial application When the adoption results a change in the consolidation or non-
consolidation of an investee, the new standard may be adopted with either full retrospective
application from date that control was obtained or lost or, 1f not practicable, with himited
retrospective application from the beginning of the earliest period for which the application s
practicable, which may be the current period Early adoption of IFRS 10 1s permitted provided
an entity also early-adopts IFRS 11, IFRS 12, IAS 27 (2011) and IAS 28 (2011) The Group
has not yet analysed the likely impact of the new Standard on 1ts financial position or
performance

IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests m Other Entities will be effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2013 The new standard contains disclosure requirements for entities that
have interests 1n subsidiaries, jont arrangements, associates and unconsolidated structured
entities Interests are widely defined as contractual and non-contractual mvolvement that
exposes an entity to variability of returns from the performance of the other entity The
expanded and new disclosure requirements aim to provide information to enable the users to
evaluate the nature of risks associated with an entity’s interests in other entities and the effects
of those interests on the entity’s financial position, financial performance and cash flows
Entities may early present some of the IFRS 12 disclosures early without a need 1o early-adopt
the other new and amended standards However, if IFRS 12 1s early-adopted in full, then IFRS
10, IFRS 11, IAS 27 (2011) and 1AS 28 (2011) must also be early-adopted The Group has not
yet analysed the likely impact of the new Standard on its financial position or performance

IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement will be effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2013 The new standard replaces the fair value measurement guidance contained 1n
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individual IFRSs with a single source of fair value measurement guidance It provides a revised
definition of fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value and sets out disclosure
requirements for fair value measurements IFRS 13 does not mtroduce new requirements to
measure assets or liabilities at fair value, nor does 1t ehiminate the practicability exceptions to
fair value measurement that currently exist in certain standards The standard 1s applied
prospectively with early adoption permmtted Comparative disclosure information 1s not
required for periods before the date of initial application The Group has not yet analysed the
likely tmpact of the new Standard on 1ts financial position or performance

* Amendment to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income The amendment requires that an entity present separately tems of
other comprehensive income that may be reclassified to profit or loss in the future from those
that will never be reclassified to profit or loss Additionally, the amendment changes the title of
the statement of comprehensive income to statement of profit or loss and other comprehenstve
income However, the use of other titles 1s permitted The amendment shall be applied
retrospectively from 1 July 2012 and early adoption 1s permitted The new Standard 1s not
expected to have a significant effect on the consolidated financial statements of the Group

* Amendments to 1AS 32 Fmancial Instruments Presentation - Offsetting Financial Assets and
Fmancial Liabiliies do not introduce new rules for offsetting financial assets and habilities,
rather they clanfy the offsetting criteria to address inconsistencies n their application The
Amendments specify that an entity currently has a legally enforceable right to set-off if that
right 1s not contingent on a future event, and enforceable both 1n the normal course of business
and 1 the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the entity and all counterparties The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014, and are to
be applied retrospectively The Group has not yet analysed the likely impact of the new
Standard on 1ts financial position or performance

* Various fmprovements to IFRSs have been dealt with on a standard-by-standard basis All
amendments, which result in accounting changes for presentation, recognition or measurement
purposes, will come 1nto effect for annual periods beginning after 1 January 2013 The Group

has not yet analysed the likely impact of the new Standard on its financial pesition or
performance

Determination of fair values

A number of the Group’s accounting policies and disclosures require the determmation of fair
value, for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilites Fair values have been determined
for measurement and for disclosure purposes based on the following methods When applicable,
further information about the assumptions made in determining fair values 1s disclosed in the notes
specific to that asset or liability

Investment property

The fair value of mvestment property (land plots) 1s based on market values The market value of
investment property 1s the estimated amount for which a property could be exchanged on the date
of valuation between a willing buyer and a willing seller in an arm’s length transaction after proper
marketing wherem the parties had each acted knowledgeably and willingly The fair value of
mvestment property 1s based on market approach This fair value i1s determmned for disclosure
purposes
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Trade and other receivables

The fair value of trade and other receivables 1s estimated as the present value of future cash flows,
discounted at the market rate of interest at the reporting date This fair value 1s determined for
disclosure purposes

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Fair value, which 1s determined for disclosure purposes, 1s calculated based on the present value of

future principal and interest cash flows, discounted at the market rate of interest at the reporting
date

Acquisition of non-controlling interests

On 17 August 2012 the Group acquired an additional 20% i QJSC “NPO “Cifroviye
Televisionniye Sistemy” for EUR 0 5 thousand (RUB 20 thousand), increasing its ownership from
50% to 70% The carrying amount of OJSC “NPO “Cifroviye Televisionniye Sistemy” 's net assets
on the date of acquisition was EUR 44 thousand The Group recognised a decrease mn non-
controlling interest of EUR 9 thousand

On 16 November 2012 the Group acquired an additional 20% interest in OJSC “GS Nanotekh” for
EUR 5 thousand (RUB 200 thousand), increasing its ownership from 80% to 100% The carrying
amount of OJSC “GS Nanotekh” s net assets on the date of acquisition was EUR (2,039) thousand
The Group recognised a decrease 1 non-controlling interest of EUR (408) thousand

Revenue

000 EUR 2082 2011

Sales of goods 82,751 81,898
Revenue from services provided 21,879 14,956
Other revenue 2,622 4,849
Total revenues 107,252 101,703
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Operating costs

000 EUR

2012 2011
Raw materials and goods for resale 54,516 56,008
Wages and salaries 22,713 16,212
Social security contributions and indirect taxes 7,022 6,002
Other staff cost 71 415
Third party services 7,375 3,548
Depreciation and amortisation of non-current assets 7,121 5,935
Impairment of current assets 560 -
Impairment of inventories 4,490 34
Impairment of property, plant and equipment 3,724 -
Rent 2,090 1,191
Communications 1,512 711
Business trips 1,062 692
Utilities 725 870
Repairs 353 83
Security 230 331
Advertising 659 189
Audit — (Parent company auditor) 34 28
Audit — (Component auditors) 223 107
Auditor's remuneration for non - audit work 18 -
Conference and exhibition 56 119
Research and development expences 215 -
Other 2,006 6,496
Total operating costs 116,775 08,971
The average number of employees for the year were
2012 2011

Management 232 191
Selling and administration 2,070 2,357
Engineering and technical staff 583 556
Total employees 2,885 3,104
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Other income / (expenses), net

000 EUR

Government grants received

Income from derecognised trade payables and advances recerved*
Income from penalties

Income from promissory notes

Write back provision on contingent habilities

Other income

Other income

Other expenses

Net other income / (expenses)

General Satellite Corporation Limuted
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2012

2012 2011
2,101 1,830
792 202
- 93
- 72
470 .
494 988
3,857 3,185
(7.801) -
(3,944) 3,185

* - Liabilities that have been derecognised as the statute of limitations has passed and no ¢laim has been

asserted by the counterparty

Finance income and finance costs

000 EUR

Recognised 1n profit or loss
Interest income

Wnite back financial assets provision
Fair value gain on loans

Non-controlling interest in limited lability
subsidiaries

Finance income

Interest expense

Non-controlling interest in linmted hability
Fair value loss on loans

Foreign currency exchange loss

Bank charges

Finance costs

Net finance costs recognised wn profit or loss

2012 2011 (restated)
1,459 3,030
25 -
- 9,098
- 219
1,484 12,347
(11,443) (8,073)
(260) -

(2,574)

(354) (95D
(189) (119)
(14,820) (9,143)
(13,336) 3,204
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Income tax expense / ( benefit)

The applicable tax rate used in weighted average UK standard rate of corporation tax for the year
of 24 5% The director has reviewed the rates of corporation tax payable 1n each country in which

the group operates and considers that 24 5% 1s not significantly different to the weighted average of
those rates

000 EUR 2012 2011

Current tax expense

UK Corporation tax 3 24

Overseas corporation tax 927 989

830 1,013

Deferred tax

Ongmation and reversal of temporary differences (1,016) (461)
(1,016} (401)

Total tax expense / (benefit) (86) 552

Tax recognised directly in equity

'000 EUR 2012 2011
Before tax Tax Net of tax Before tax Tax Net of tax
Discount of a low-interest loan
from a related party 6,838 (367) 6,471 38 3 35
6,838 (367) 6,471 38 (3) 35
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Reconciliation of effective tax rate:

2012 2011 (restated)
‘000 EUR % 000 EUR %

{Loss)/profit for the year (20,824) 9,572
Total mncome tax (benefit)/expense (86) 552
(Loss)/profit excluding tax (20,910) 100 00% 10,124 100 00%
Income tax at applicable tax rate (5,123) 24 50% 2,684 26 51%
Effect of loss/(profit) taxed m foreign
jurisdictions 5,517 (26 80)% (485) 4 79Y%
Recogmition of previously unrecognised tax
losses 256 (122)% (925) (914
Current tax losses for whtch no deferred tax
asset 1s recogrused 442 211 1,042 10 29%
Depreciation in excess of capital allowance 2 0.1% - -
Non-taxable income (3,500 16 74% (2,463} (24 33)%
Unrecognised deferred tax assets 721 (3 45)% - -
Non-deductible expenses 1,599 (7 65)% 699 6 90%

(86) 041% 552 545%
Property, plant and equipment

Land and  Plant and Fixtures Under
000 EUR Note buildings equipment and fittings construction Total
Cost
Balance at 1 January 2011 16,776 15,645 1,594 9,698 43,713
Acquisitions through business
combinations - 57 62 - 119
Additions 3,075 6,523 204 3,800 13,602
Disposals 42 (57) a3 (136) (248)
Transfers 1,266 4,357 297 (5,920) -
Effect of movements in
exchange rates (621) (580) (53) (35 (1,289)
Balance at 31 December 2011 20,454 25,945 2,091 7,407 55,897
Balance at 1 January 2012 20,454 25,945 2,091 7,407 55,897
Additions 814 14,090 256 16,219 31,379
Disposals @) (1,158) (7%) (343) {1,578)
Transfers 1,088 130 7 (1,225) -
Reclassification from
nvestment property 14 685 - - - 685
Effect of movements in
exchange rates 717 724 63 165 1,66%
Balance at 31 December 2012 23,756 39,731 2,342 22,223 88,052
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Land and  Plant and Fixtures Under
'000 EUR Note buildings equipment and fittings construction Total
Depreciation and rmpairment
losses
Balance at 1 January 2011 (619) (3,331) (158) - (4,108)
Depreciation for the year 8 (1,426) (2,578) (352) - (4,356)
Disposals - 7 g - i6
Effect of movements in
exchange rates - 14 9 - 23
Balance at 31 December 2011 (2,045 (5,838) (492) - (8,425)
Balance at 1 January 2012 (2,045) (5,888) (492) - (8,425)
Depreciation for the year 8 (1,598) (3,924) (389 - (5.911)
Impairment loss (3,144) (398) (182) . (3,724)
Disposals 1 526 22 - 549
Effect of movements in
exchange rates (40) (85) (10) - (135)
Balance at 31 December 2012 (6,826) {9,769) {1,051) - (17,646)
Carrying amounts
At 1 January 2011 16,157 12,314 1,436 9,698 39,605
At 31 December 2011 18,409 20,057 1,599 7,407 47,472
At 31 December 2012 16,930 29,962 1,291 22,223 70,406

Deprectation expense of EUR 5,973 thousand has been charged to operating costs (2011
EUR 4,146 thousand) Depreciation expense of EUR 210 thousand (2011 EUR 210 thousand) has
been capitalised 1n the cost of inventories

Capitalised borrowing costs related to the acquisition of the land and the construction of a new

factory amounted to EUR 1,195 thousand (2011 EUR 209 thousand), with a capitalisation rate of
6 50% (2011. 6 19%)

The cost of fully depreciated property, plant and equipment at 31 December 2012 amounted to
EUR 1,548 thousand (2011 EUR 1,385 thousand)

Impairment loss

The carrying amount of the Group’s property, plant and equipment was reviewed at the reporting
date to determine whether there was any indication of imparrment

As a relevant cash-generating unit evidencing such mdication, residential house manufacturing
company (DSK Beliy Kluch) was selected for the purpose of impairment testing

CGU’s impairment test was based on value in use 1n 2012, determined by discounting the future
projected cash flows to be generated from the contimuing use of the assets

The values assigned to the key projections represented management’s assessment of future
production trends mn industry and based thereon Group’s production plans
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The main management assumption ts that the plant and related assets production capacity would be
fully utilized for residential house manufacturing required for the Group mternal demand, 1e the
houses manufactured would be rented out by the Group employees or, m exceptional cases,
transferred te the Group employees free of charge

The change in the management plans was triggered by the decline in demand registered 1n 2012
and urgent internal Group requirements

The management 1s planning to recommence commercial production (1e production of houses for
external demand) as soon as internal demand 1s met

Budgeted EBITDA was based on expectation of future outcomes taking into account past
experience, adjusted for the following

e revenues included mn cash flow projections for the years 2013 to 2018 were based on
anticipated internal demand level,

s operating expenses were assumed to increase 1 line with forecast inflation for the next five
years

The carrying amount of the CGU’s assets was determined to be higher than their recoverable

amount amounting to zero and an impayment loss of EUR 3,724 thousand (2011 nil) was
recognized

000 EUR 2012

Carrying amount 3,724

Recoverable amount

Impairment loss (3,724)

Since the commercial production re-establishment within at least five year period from the
reporting date the management forecasts positive change in cash generating dynamics which may
result in subsequent loss reversal

The impairment loss for 2012 was included in operating costs

Intangible assets

Development

000 EUR Note Goodwill Software costs Total
Cost

Balance at 1 January 2011 20,375 2,181 - 22,556
Other acquisitions 1,080 1,623 - 2,703
Balance at 31 December 2011 21,455 3,804 - 25,259
Balance at | January 2012 21,455 3,804 - 25,259
Additions - 3,961 120 4,081
Disposals - 3D 20) (51)
Reclassification to assets held for sale - (1,675) - {1,675)
Effect of movement in exchange rates - 78 (n T7
Balance at 31 December 2012 21,455 6,137 99 27,691
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Development
000 EUR Note Goodwill Software costs Total
Amorusation and impairment losses
Balance at 1 January 2011 (8,960) (1,538) - (10,498)
Amortisation for the year 8 (101) (502) - (603)
Impatrment loss (48) - - (48)
Balance at 31 December 2011 (9,109) (2,040) - (11,149)
Balance at 1 January 2012 (9,109) (2,040) - (11,149)
Amortisation for the year 8 - (1,216) - (1,216)
Reclassification to assets held for sale - 510 - 510
Effect of movement 1n exchange rates - (16) - (16)
Balance at 31 December 2012 (9,109) (2,762) - (11,871
Carrying amounts
At 1 January 2011 11,415 643 - 12,058
At 31 December 2011 12,346 1,764 - 14,110
At 31 December 2012 12,346 3,375 99 15,820
Amortisation
Amortisation of software rights is included in operating costs
Assets held for sale
Assets held for sale comprise a conditional access system
Investment property
Cost Note *000 EUR
Balance at 1 January 2011 1,633
Additions 169
Acquisitions through business combinations 3,178
Translation difference (45)
Balance at 31 December 2011 4,935
Additions 324
Reclassification to property, plant and equipment 12 (685)
Translation difference 179
Balance at 31 December 2012 4,753
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Carrying amounts

At 1 January 2011 1,633
At 31 December 2011 4,935
At 31 December 2012 4,753

Investment property comprises a number of land plots that were acquired by the Group for
undetermined future use The fair value of the land plots was determined by the management on the

basis of recent market transactions and comprised EUR 5,498 thousand as at 31 December 2012
(2011 EUR 5,369 thousand)

Equity accounted investees

The Group’s share of profit in 1ts equity accounted mvestee (net of income tax) for the period
ended 31 December 2012 was EUR 842 thousand (2011 EUR 1,003 thousand) In 2012 the Group
did not recerve dividends from 1ts mvestments in equity accounted investee

The following 1s summansed financial informatton for equity accounted nvestee, not adjusted for
the percentage ownership held by the Group

000 EUR Ownership Total assets Total habilities  Revenues Profit

31 December 2011

LLC “Prankor” 30% 11,522 (7,259) 9,102 3,344
11,522 (7,259) 9,102 3,344
000 EUR Ownership Total assets  Total labilities  Revenues Profit

31 December 2012
LLC “Prankor” 30% 12,406 (5,088) 9,783 2,807
12,406 (5,088) 9,783 2,807

The reporting date for the associate listed above is 31 December
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Other investments

000 EUR Note 31 December 2012 31 December 2011

Non-current

Equity secunties - 82
Deposits and guarantees paid 119 114
Bank promissory notes 411 464
Loans issued - 94
Leans to related parties 8 -
Other mvestments - 7
538 761

Current
Marketable securities 380
Bank deposits 16,740 34,194
Bank promissory notes - 1,571
Loans to related parties 28 1,451 1,049
Loans 1ssued 62 72
18,253 37,266

The Group’s exposure to credit, currency and mterest rate risks related to other investments 1s
disclosed 1n note 24

At 31 December 2012 bank promissory notes with a carrying amount of EUR 411 thousand were

pledged as security for borrowings received by one of the Group compantes (31 December 2011
EUR 464 thousand)

At 31 December 2012 no bank promissory notes were pledged as security for borrowings received
by third parties (31 December 2011 EUR 1,571 thousand)

Deposits and guarantees paid include deposits paid to the lessor of one of the group’s busimess
premises of €117 thousand and deposits paid to various suppliers of €2 thousand

Deferred tax assets and liabilities

Unrecognised deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised n respect of the following items
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000 EUR 2012 2011

Deductible temporary differences 652 -

Tax losses 30,542 -
21,311 -

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised n respect of these items because 1t ts not probable

that future taxable profit will be available against which the Group can utihse the benefits
therefrom

(b) Recogmsed deferred tax assets and liabilities
Deferred tax assets and habilities are attributable to the following
Assets Liabilities Net

000 EUR 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
Property, plant and equipment 16 - (1,201) (1,148) (1,185) (1,148)
Investment property - - (533) {515) (533) (515)
Intangible assets 61 - {32) (55) 29 (55)
Investments 10 10 - - 10 10
Inventories 273 146 (10) - 263 146
Trade and other receivables 38 85 6 (5) 52 80
Loans and borrowings 17 2 (348) (29) (331) 27
Accruals 55 52 - 21 55 (159)
Tax loss carry-forwards 1,177 598 - - 1,177 598
Tax assets/(habilities) 1,667 893 (2,130) (1,963) (463) (1,070)
Set off of tax (690) (483) 690 483 - -
Net tax assets/{liabilities) 977 410 (1,440) (1,480) (463) (1,070)
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Movement in temporary differences during the year

Recognised
1 January Recogmsed 1n Translation directty in 31 December
000 EUR 2012 profit or loss difference equity 2012
Property, plant and equipment {1,148) 2 41 - (1,187)
Investment property (515) - (18) - (533)
Intangible assets (55) 87 3) - 29
Investments 10 - - - 10
Inventories 146 112 5 - 263
Trade and other receivables 80 3D 3 - 52
Loans and borrowings 2hH 63 i (367) (330)
Accruals (139) 222 7 - 56
Tax loss carry-forwards 598 561 18 - 1,177
(1,070) 1,016 (42) (367) (463)
Acqusition
Recognised Recogmise through
1 January 1nprofitor Translation d directly business 31 December
000 EUR 2011 loss difference  in equity combination 2011

Property, plant and equipment (1,261) 70 43 - - (1,148)
Investment property - - - - (515) (515)
Intangible assets 4) (52) 1 - (55)
Investments G 1 - - 10
Inventories 30 119 (3) - 146
Trade and other receivables (22) 103 (n» - 80
Loans and borrowings 50 (74 - (3) 27N
Accruals (123) 4n 5 - (159)
Tax loss carry-forwards - 335 n - 264 598
(1,321) 461 44 (3) (251) (1,070)
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18. Inventories

000 EUR 31 December 2012 31 December 2011

Raw matenals and consumables 0,673 5,921

Work 1n progress 1,840 3,921
Fimished goods and goods for resale 7,367 3,238

18,880 13,080

In 2012 raw materials, consumables and changes 1n finished goods and work in progress included
in operating costs amounted to EUR 31,380 thousand (in 2011 EUR 18,420 thousand)

Capitalised borrowing costs related to work in progress amounted to EUR 168 thousand, with a
capitalisation rate of 6 60%

In 2012 the wrnite-down of inventories to net realisable value amounted to EUR 4,490 thousand (in

2011 EUR 34 thousand) The write-down 1s included wn operating costs There were no reversals
of wnite-downs 1n 2012

000 EUR Note 31 December 2012 31 December 2011

Trade receivables due from related parties 29 368 348
Trade receivables from third parties 9,708 8,975
Other receivabies 8,851 5,211

Trade and other receivables 18,927 14,534

[nput VAT 2,923 1,387
Other taxes receivable 1,941 748

Trade and other receivables 23,791 16,669

Non-current - -

Current 23,791 16,669
23,791 16,669

The Group’s exposure to credit and currency risks and impairment losses related to trade and other
recervables are disclosed 1n note 25

Other receivables include loans to the director, Mr A Tkachenko of EUR nul (in 2011 EUR 929
thousand Interest of 6% was charged
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20. Cash and cash equivalents
000 EUR 31 December 2012 31 December 2011
Cash in RUB 5,283 2,061
Cash in GBP 53 38
Cash in USD 8,575 3,411
Cash in EUR 4,997 7,920

18,908 13,430

The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk and a sensitivity analysis for financial assets and
habuilities are disclosed in note 25

21. Capital and reserves

(a) Share capital

Ordinary shares
Number of shares unless otherwise

stated 31 December 2012 31 December 2011 1 January 2011

Authorised shares GBP1 00 each 148,500 148,500 148,500
Issued and fully paid at 1 January 57,508 57,508 57,508
Bonus 1ssue {99,000 at GBP1 00 each) 118,790 - -
On 1ssue at 31 December, fully paid 176,298 57,508 57,508

All shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s residual assets. The holders of ordinary
shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time, and are entitled to one vote
per share at meetings of the Company

99,000 Ordinary shares of GBP1 00 each were allotted as fully paid as a bonus 1ssue out of reserves
during the year

(b Additional paid in capital

Additional paid n capital includes amounts ansing from business combinations and from changes
in the relative interest 1n subsidiaries, in entities that are under the control of the shareholder of the
group Any differences between the net assets acquired or sold and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received 1s recognised directly in equity and attributed to the owners of the
company Additional paid 1n capital also includes fair value gains arising on the recognition of low
interest loans received from entities under common control

{©) Share Premium Reserves

The share premum reserve 1s to record the excess over par value received on 1ssue of shares
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Translation reserve

The translation reserve comprises all foreign currency differences arising from the translation of
the financial statements to presentation currency

Loans and borrowings

This note provides information about the contractual terms of the Group’s mterest-bearing loans
and borrowings, which are measured at amortised cost For more informatton about the Group’s
exposure to interest rate, forergn currency and liquidity risk, see note 25

31 December 2012 31 December 2011

'000 EUR (restated)
Non-current liabilities
Secured bank loans - 166
Unsecured loans 49,557 16,497
Other leans 45,792 51,335
Loans from directors 30 -
95,379 67,998
Current habilities
Current portion of secured bank loans 162 1,140
Unsecured loans 45,342 47,247
Loans from directors 135 160
Other lcans - 145
45,639 48,692

Terms and debt repayment schedule
Terms and conditions of outstanding loans were as follows

31 December 2012 31 December 2011

(restated)
Nominal
interest Year of Face Carrying Face Carrying
000 EUR Currency rate maturity value amount value amount
Secured bank
toan uUsD 3 00% 2013 162 162 340 340
Secured bank
loan usD 7 80% 2012 - - 966 966
Unsecured loans RUB 4 00% 2012-2013 23 23 41,440 40,248
Unsecured loans RUB 6 00% 2012-2013 79 82 72 72
Unsecured loans RUB 6 40% 2013-2015 56,016 51,423 - -
Unsecured loans RUB 6 50% 2013-2014 20,948 20,058 12,783 12,163
Unsecured loans RUB 9 00% 2012-2013 1,487 1,502 1,704 1,704
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Unsecured loans usD 4 00% 2012 - - 6,592 6,574
Unsecured loans usp 6 40% 2012-2¢13 2,234 2,234 - -
Unsecured loans UsD 6 50% 2012-2013 2,312 2,308 2,327 2,296
Unsecured loans EUR 6 50% 2013 3,284 3,276 677 687
Unsecured loans EUR 6 40% 2013-2015 13,703 13,237 - -
Dmatech Global EUR 4 00% 2015 21,734 21,503 31,920 37,865
Dinatech Clobal EUR 2 50% 2015 7,264 6,261 - -
Dinatech Global UspD 4 00% 2015 4,415 5,277 - -
T&V Savings Fou EUR 4 00% 2015 - 2,629 13,600 13,248
Spilkoma Trading EUR 6 50 % 2015 3,760 3,866 263 222
Spilkoma Trading EUR 325% 2015 6,125 6,256 - -
Unsecured loans EUR 6 5% 2015 714 756 - -
Loans from

directors RUB 001% 2012-2014 165 165 160 160
Total interest-bearing hiabilities 144,425 141,018 112,844 116,545

Trade and other payables

000 EUR Note 31 December 2012 31 December 2011
Non-current payables
Trade payables to third parties - 340
Non-controlling interest in imited hiability
subsidiaries 18 (232)
18 108
Current payables
Payables to related parties 29 2,406 357
Trade payables to third parties 9,890 8,276
Advances received 3,213 6,236
Other taxes payable 4,487 4,556
Payables to employees 1,851 908
Payables for promissory notes 3,045 4,787
Other payables and accrued expenses 17,664 759
42,556 25,879

The Group’s exposure to currency and hquidity risk related to trade and other payables 1s disclosed
In note 25
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Provisions
Currency

Employee translation
000 EUR Disputes disputes adjustments Total
Balance at 1 January 2011 698 1,003 - 1,701
Provisions made during the year 220 78 25 323
Provisions used during the year - {696) - (696)
Provisions reversed during the year - (341) - (34D
Balance at 31 December 2011 918 44 25 987
Balance at | January 2012 918 44 25 087
Provisions made during the year 2 - 13 17
Provisions used during the year (470) 25 (25) (520)
Provisions reversed during the year (16) (19) - (35
Balance at 31 December 2012 434 - 15 449

All provisions are current
Disputes

The prowvision for disputes relates to two litigation claims against one of the Group’s companies as
follows

There 1s a dispute relating to a fease agreement for rental premises that was not approved by the
company’s shareholders The company disputed the validity of the lease and the payment of rent
The owner of the property referred the case to the Court to request a provision for the rental income
but this request was rejected They 1ssued the company with a summons to appear 1n court for a
substantive examnation of the contested case for the rental mcome, and conducted four
garnishments on the company’s bank accounts for the rental income The company appealed and
lost the case The provision for risk for this dispute, amounting to EUR 470 thousand was fully
reversed in the year

There 1s a dispute relating to a contract covering the company’s establishment of encryption and
access control methods for the benefit of a third party who entrusted the company with the sale of
access licences to a channel The third party imitiated a severing of contractual relations assigning
responsibility for this severance to the company The company invoked the nullity of the contract
and the court sentenced both parties to pay each other EUR 109 thousand The third party then
appealed this verdict and the court ordered the company to pay EUR 444 thousand The company
was forced to pay the sum but are now seeking advice with a view to obtain reimbursement of all
or part of the EUR 444 thousand The company has provisioned for the entire sum corresponding to
this sentence, namely EUR 444 thousand — this forming part of opening balance provision brought
forward from 2010
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Financial instruments and risk management

The Group’s financtal instruments by category are as follows

2012 2011
000 EUR Loans and Loans and
Recervables Receivables
Assets
Other mvestments 18,791 38,027
Trade and other recervables 18,927 14,534
Cash and cash equivalents 18,908 13,430
56,626 65,991
Fmanaeal Financial
000 EUR habihities at Iiabilittes at
amortised amortised
cost cost
Liabilities
Loans and borrowings 141018 116,690
Trade and other payables 17,806 14,066
158,824 130,756

Financial assets with a carring value of EUR 411 thousand (EUR 464 thousand) have been pledged

as security for borrowings

Overview

The Group has exposure to the following nsks from its use of financial instruments

e credit risk
¢ lLiquudity nsk

s market risk

This note presents information about the Group’s exposure to each of the above risks, the Group’s
objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the Group’s management

of capital Further quantitative disclosures are included throughout these consolidated financial
statements
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Risk management framework

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the
Group’s risk management framework

The Group’s nisk management policies are established to 1dentify and analyse the nisks faced by the
Group, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits Risk
management polictes and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions
and the Group’s activities The Group, through its traiming and management standards and
procedures, aims to develep a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all
employees understand thew roles and obligations

Credit risk

Credit risk 1s the nsk of financial loss to the Group 1f a customer or counterparty to a financial
instrument fails to meet 1ts contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Group’s
receivables from customers and loans given

Exposure to credit risk

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure The maxunum
exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was as follows

Carrying amount

000 EUR Note 2012 2011
Bank deposits 16 16,740 34,194
Trade and other receivables 19 18,927 14,534
Cash and cash equivalents 20 18,908 13,430
Deposits 16 119 114
Other Investments i6 - 469
Loans 16 1,521 1,215
Bank promissory notes 16 411 2,035
56,626 65,991

Trade receivables

The Group’s exposure to credit risk 15 influenced mamly by the individual characteristics of each
customer However, management alse considers the demographics of the Group’s customer base,
including the default risk of the industry and country, in which customers operate, as these factors
may have an mfluence on credit risk, particularly in the currently detemorating economic
circurnstances  Approximately 23% (2011 14%) of the Group’s revenue 1s attributable to sales

transactions with a single customer However, geographically there 1s no concentration of credit
risk

The four most significant customers of the Group account for EUR 2,011 thousand of the trade
receivables carrying amount at 31 December 2012 (2011 EUR 2,440 thousand)
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Loans given

The Group provides loans to third and related parties Management monstors the creditworthiness
of borrowers and does not expect any counterparty to fail to meet 1ts obligations

The Group does not require collateral m respect of loans given

Bank deposits

The Group has a policy of depositing surplus cash balances with reputable Russian banks The
purpose of such policy 1s to secure interest on deposits and at the same time mantan targeted
liquidity level The Group limits its exposure to credit risk by only placing deposits with banks
(financial institutions), whose creditworthiness has been certified by Russian banks rating agencies

Impairment losses

The aging of trade recelvables at the reporting date was

Gross Impairment
000 EUR 2012 2012
Not past due 9,002 (on
Past due 0- 30 days 120 )]
Past due 31-90 days 455 (34)
Past due more than 90 days 925 (369)
10,502 (427)

The movement 1n the allowance for impairment n respect of trade receivables during the year was
as follows

Imparwrment

'000 EUR 2012 2011

Balance at beginning of the year 216 147
Increase during the year 372 69
Decrease during the year (169) -
Translation difference 8 -
Balance at end of the year 427 216

The allowance account n respect of trade receivables 15 used to record impairment losses unless
the Group 1s satisfied that no recovery of the amount owing s possible, at that point the amount 1s
considered irrecoverable and 1s written off against the financial asset directly

Liquidity risk

Liqudity nisk 1s the nisk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations
associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset
The Group’s approach to managing hiquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that 1t will always have
sufficient liquidity to meet its habilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions,
without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Group’s reputation
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Typically the Group ensures that 1t has sufficient cash on demand to meet current operational
expenses, including the servicing of financial obligations, this excludes the potential impact of
extreme circumstances that cannot reasonably be predicted, such as natural disasters

The following are the contractual maturities of financial habilities, including estimated interest
payments It 15 not expected that the cash flows included n the maturity analysis could occur
significantly earlier, or at significantly different amounts

2012
Carrying Contractual

000 EUR amount cash flows  0-6 mths 6-12mths 1-2yrs Over2yrs
Non-derivative financial habilities
Secured bank loans 162 162 82 80 - -
Unsecured loans 140,690 150,284 2,851 40,286 57,770 49,377
Loans from directors 165 165 13 121 31 -
Trade and other payables 17,806 17,806 16,660 1,146 - -

158,823 168,417 19,606 41,633 57,801 49,377
2011

Carrymg  Contractual
'000 EUR amount cash flows  0-6 mths 6-12 mths 1-2 yrs Over 2 yrs

Non-derivative financial habihities

Secured bank loans 1,306 1,377 89 1,114 174 -
Unsecured loans 115,265 117,120 154 48,452 17,138 51,376
Loans from directors 160 160 105 20 35 -
Trade and other payables 16,556 16,556 11,426 4,787 340 -

133,287 135,213 11,777 54,373 17,687 51,376

After the end of reporting period the Group restructured a significant portion of the debt falling due
in 2013 (refer to note 31 for more details)

Market risk

Market nisk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates
and equity prices will affect the Group’s mcome or the value of its holdings of financial
instruments The cbjective of market risk management 15 to manage and control market risk
exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return

Currency risk

The Group 1s exposed to currency risk on sales, purchases and borrowings that are denominated 1n
a currency other than the respective functional currency of Group entities, which 1s the Euro
(EUR) The currencies i which these transactions primarily are denominated are euro (EUR),
Russian Rubles (RUB)}and U S dollars (USD)

Interest on borrowings 1s denominated in the currency of the borrowing
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In respect of other monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies, the Group’s
policy 1s to ensure that its net exposure 15 kept to an acceptable level by buying or selling foreign
currencies at spot rates when necessary to address short-term 1mbalances

Exposure to currency risk

The Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk was as follows based on notional amounts

USD- Rub - Euro - Other -

000 EUR denommated  denomnated denominated denominated Total

Other Investments - 3,672 15,119 - 18,791
Trade and other receivables 6,106 5,526 7,074 221 18,927
Cash and cash equivalents 8,575 5,283 4,997 53 18,9038
Loans and borrowings (9,981) (73,180) (57,857 - (141,018)
Trade and other payables (2,782) (10,824) (4,019 (181) (17,806)
Net exposure 1,918 (69,523) (34,686) 93 (102,198)

The following significant exchange rates applied during the year

m EUR Average rate Reporting date spot rate
31 December 31 December
2012 2011 2012 2011
uspb 1 12858 13924 13215 12949
RUB 1 399524 40 8865 40 2286 41 6714

Sensitivity analysis

A strengthening /weakening of the EUR, as indicated below, against the following currencies at 31
December would have increased (decreased) pre-tax profit or loss by the amounts shown below
There would be no direct impact on equity This analysis 1s based on foreign currency exchange
rate vanances that the Group considered to be reasonably possible at the end of the reporting
period The analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant

*000 EUR
31 December 2012

Profit or loss

USD {10% strengthening) (174)
RUB (10% strengtherning) 6,320
USD (10% weakening) 213
RUB (10% weakening) (7,725)

Interest rate risk

Changes 1n nterest rates impact primanly loans and borrowings by changing either their fair value

(fixed rate debt) or their future cash flows (variable rate debt) The Group’s policy s only to
borrow at a fixed rate of interest
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Profile

At the reporting date the interest rate profile of the Group’s interest-bearing financial instruments
was

000 EUR Carrymng amount

31 December 2012 31 December 2011

Fixed rate instruments

Financial assets 17,151 36,229
Financial liabilities {141,018) (116,690)
(123,867) (80,461)

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

The Group does not account for any fixed rate financial instruments as fawr value through profit or

loss or as available-for-sale. Therefore a change n interest rates at the reporting date would not
have an effect in profit or loss or in equity

Fair values versus carrying amounits

The base for determination of a fair value 1s disclosed in Note 5 The management believes that the

fair value of financial assets and habihties of the Group 1s approximately equal to their respective
carrying amounts

Capital management

The Group has no formal policy for capital management but management seeks to maintain a
sufficient capital base for meeting the Group’s operational and strategic needs, and to maintamn
confidence of market participants Total comprehensive loss for the year ended 31 December 2012
was principally generated by the businesses which were on a set-up stage, with yet fully unutilized
production capacities The management concentrates on efficient production and cash management,
constant monttoring of Group’s revenues and long-term investment plans to be mamly financed by
the Group’s operating cash flows With these measures the Group aims for steady profits growth

Operating leases and other rental commitements

Non-cancellable operating lease rentals are payable as follows

000 EUR 31 December 2012 31 December 2011
Less than one year 1,939 631
Between one and five years 1,631 123
More than five years 14,210 83
17,780 837

During the year ended 31 December 2012 an amount of EUR 1,611 thousand was recognised as an

expense in profit or loss in respect of operating leases (2011 EUR 1,031 thousand) The Group has
no contingent rent arrangements
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The Group entered into four equipment leasing contracts, one of which relates to a water fountain
for a duration of 20 quarters with a quarterly rate amounting to EUR 357 thousand

Capital commitments

As at 31 December 2012 the Group had contractual commitments to purchase plant and equipment
for EUR 4,983 thousand (2011: EUR 8,216 thousand)

The company signed a commercial contract amounting to USD 6,200k in 2011 for the supply of its
main component On 31/12/2012, this commercial commitment amounted to USD 3,255k This
contract was concluded for a duration of two years, expiring on 31st March 2014

The total contract value for the woodeutting equipment 158 EUR 7,800 thousand This amount 1s
payable in tranches according to the finalization of certain stages 1n the production process

Under the mnvestment agreement with RMEC Cambodia, the group has a total of USD 1,200

thousand commited as equity investment This sum 1s divided into monthly instalments ending
May 2014

Contingencies

Iinsurance

The 1insurance industry in the Russian Federation 15 in a developing state and many forms of
Insurance protection common 1n other parts of the world are not yet generally available The Group
does not have full coverage for its plant facilities, business interruption, or third party lhiabihty 1n
respect of property or environmental damage anising from accidents on Group property or relating
to Group operations Until the Group obtains adequate insurance coverage, there 1s a risk that the

loss or destruction of certamn assets could have a material adverse effect on the Group’s operations
and financial position

Latigation

The Group was not involved tn any significant litigations as at 31 December 2012

Taxation contingencies

The taxatton system 1n the Russian Federation continues to evolve and 1s characterised by frequent
changes 1 legislation, official pronouncements and court decisions, which are sometimes
contradictory and subject to varying interpretation by different tax authorities Taxes are subject to
review and investigation by a number of authorittes, which have the authonty to impose severe
fines, penalties and nterest charges A tax year remains open for review by the tax authorities
during the three subsequent calendar years, however, under certain circumstances a tax year may
remain open longer Recent events within the Russian Federation suggest that the tax authorities

are taking a more assertive and substance-based position in their interpretation and enforcement of
tax legislation

These circumstances may create tax risks in the Russian Federation that are substantially more
significant than in other countries Management believes that 1t has provided adequately for tax
liabilities based on 1ts interpretations of applicable Russtan tax legislation, official pronouncements
and court decisions However, the interpretations of the relevant authorities could differ and the
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effect on these consolidated financial statements, if the authorities were successful 1n enforcing
their interpretations, could be sigmificant

Related party transactions

Control relationships

The ultimate controlling party of the Group 1s Mr Andrey Georgievich Tkachenko

Transactions with key management personnel

Loans to directors

No new unsecured loans to directors were issued during the year (2011 EUR 849 thousand) At 31

December 2012 the balance outstanding was EUR 863 thousand (2011 EUR 833 thousand) and 1s
mcluded 1n loans to related parties (see note 16)

Shareholders current accounts — credit balances

000 EUR 2012
Mr A Tkachenko 73

2011

73 -

The shareholders’ current accounts are interest free and have no specified repayment date

Key management remuneration

Key management received the following remuneration during the year, which s included in
personnel costs

000 EUR 2012 2011

Salaries and bonuses 651 417

Contributions to State pension fund 71 53
722 470

Other related party transactions

The Group’s other related party transactions are disclosed below
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Revenue
Transaction value for the year
000 EUR ended 31 December Outstanding balance
31 December 31 December
2012 2011 2012 2011
Sale of goods
Entiies under common control 1 - 1 -
Entittes with significant influence 125 - - -
Equity accounted investees 1 - - -
Services provided
Entities under common control 5,749 639 1,715 189
Entities with significant influence 439 - - -
Equity accounted investees 73 211 25 122
6,388 850 1,741 3N

All outstanding balances with related parties are to be settled in cash within year of the reporting
date None of the balances are secured.

Expenses
Transaction value for the year
000 EUR ended 31 December Outstanding balance
31 December 31 December
2012 2011 2012 2011
Purchase of goods
Entities under common control 205 1,944 257 21
Equity accounted investees 1,302 401 976 -
Services recerved
Entities under common control 345 86 30 336
Equity accounted investees 4 - 96 -
Entities with significant influence - - 145 -
1,856 2,431 1,504 357

All outstanding balances with related parties are to be settled in cash within six months of the
reporting date None of the balances are secured

Salary and bonuses paid to employees of the Group by Related parties amounted to EUR 943
thousand for 2012 (2011 EUR 1,271 thousand)

At 31 December 2012 unpaid dividends amounted to EUR 841 thousand including EUR 722
thousand due to Mr Andrey Georgievich Tkachenko
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(¥ii) Loans
Amount Amount Outstanding Outstanding
000 EUR loaned loaned balance balance
31 December 31 December
2012 2011 2012 2011

Loans received
Parent Company - 479 - -
Entities under common ¢ontrol 86,763 26,994 134,696 24,301
Loans given
Entities under common control (2) - - (216)
Equity accounted investees - - (596) -

86,761 27,473 134,100 24,085

At 31 December 2012 the Group had no commitments to related parties to do something if a
particular event occurs or does not occur i the future including obligations under executory

contracts
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Significant subsidiaries and associates

Assoclate

LLC “Prankor”

Subsudiary

General Satellite Gmbh

General Satellite Group AG

DTH Pakistan Ltd

Royal Media Entertainment Corp Ltd
Parus Med:a Broadcast Lid

General Satelhite Research & Development Ltd
National Centre of Develoment OO0
Neotion S A

Neotion Asia

Extended Secure Technologies B V
ExSeT IPB V

ExSet Service BV

0ISC “Concern Innovational Technologies”
LLC “FortLine”

LLC “Konsalt-Technologiya”

LLC “Cifra”

LLC “IK “Satprof”

LLC “Pervaya Kartonazhnaya Fabrika”

QJSC “NPO “Cifroviye Televisionniye
Sistemy™

LLC “DSK “Beliy Klutch”
QJSC “Almet”

LLC “Almet-Export”

LLC “Mega-Servis”

0QJSC “GS Nanotekh”

LLC “CTS-Servis”

LLC “Terra-Vita”

LLC “Unona-Geo”

LLC “Kontur”

LLC “Torgovy Dom “Cifra”

CJSC “TekhnoServis” {former CJSC "Agenstvo
Razvitiya Territoriy™)

LLC “Zemelnaya innovacionnaya kompaniya™
LLC “Novoplast™

LLC “Laboratortya Kniptographicheskih
system”

LLC “UK “Technopolis-Gusev”

General Satellite Corporation Linuted
Notes to the Conselidated Financial Statements for the vear ended 3] December 2012

2012 2011
Country of
mcorporation  Ownership/voting Ownership/voting
Russia 3% 3%
Germany 100% 100%
Switzerland 100% 100%
Pakistan 100% 100%
Cambodia 51% 51%
Pakistan 49% 49%
UK 100% 100%
Russia 90% 90%
France 94% 94%
Honk Kong 94% 94%
The Nether lands 100% 100%
The Netherlands 100% 100%
The Netherlands 100% 100%
Russia 10% 10%
Russia 10% 10%
Russia 10% 10%
Russia 10% 10%
Russia 10% 10%
Russia 7% 7%
Russia 7% 5%
Russia 10% 8%
Russia 6% 6%
Russia 6% 6%
Russia 10% 10%
Russia 10% 8%
Russia 7% 3%
Russia 10% 10%
Russia 10% 10%
Russia 10% 10%
Russia 10% 10%
Russia 10% 10%
Russia 10% 10%
Russia 10% 10%
Russia 10% 10%
Russia 10% 10%
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LLC “Dedovichskaya lesnaya kompaniya” Russia 9% 9%
LLLC “Lesozavod Sudoma” Russia 9% -
LLC “Nanouglerodnie material” Russia 5% -
LLC “GS Ecopulp” Russia 10% -

The Company holds only a 10% shareholding in OJSC Concern Innovational Technologies,
however 1t and 1ts subsidiaries are consohdated in these financial statements as the company has
control over OJSC Concern Innovational Technologies via agreement with the other equity

shareholder The shareholdings above reflect the company’s effective interest 1n the Russian
subsidiaries

On 14 December 2012 the Group acquired an additional 20% interest in LLC “DSK “Beliy
Klutch”, increasing 1ts ownership from 80% to 100%

In 2012 the Group established the following entities

* On 17 December 2012 the Group established LLC “GS Ecopulp” in the capacity of the sole
shareholder

* On 15 August 2012 the Group established LLC “Lesozavod Sudoma® with the share of 90%

On 22 October 2012 the Group established LLC “Nanouglerodnie material?” with the share of
50%

During the year the group disposed of two subsidiaries GS Bulgaria Plovdin and GS Bulgana Sofia
for combined proceeds of EUR 5,055 thousand These subsidiaries were not material and were
therefore not consolidated n these financial statements

Events subsequent to the reporting date

In 2013 the Group established the following entities mn the capacity of the sole sharcholder

* On 21 January 2013 the Group established LLL “GS Organics”,
* On 9 Apnl 2013 the Group established LLC “Globalcom”

On June 28, 2013, the Group acquired additional 20% of the share capital of Limited Liability
Company “Prankor” (LLC “Prankor”), increasing 1ts share n the entity’s share capital up to 50%,
for a cash consideration at par value of the shares equal to EUR 5 thousand (RUB 202 thousand)
The Group can exercise control over this entity as the Group has the majority within the investee's
board of directors and control of the entity Is exercised through that board The Group has not yet

determined the acquisition carrying amounts of 1dentifiable assets and labilities assumed 1n this
business combination

In January and July 2013, the Group rescheduled the debt repayment to the related parties of EUR
28,091 thousand followmg due m 2013 (refer to note 24) to the latter periods {(2015-2016) Based
on the rescheduled agreements, the Group expects to have sufficient cash to meet its debt
obligations falling due by the end of 2013
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At the year end the Group held EUR 15,203,967 at a Cypriot branch of a Russian bank In response
to the financial crises in Cyprus the Cypriot Mimistry of Finance has introduced restrictions on the
movement of these funds Whilst this 1s not expected to impact on short term funds, 1t may impact
on a fixed term deposit of €15m held with the bank The term deposit is due to mature 1n December
2013 and should restrictions still 1n place, the company will have very restricted access to these

funds It may be forced to place the funds back on deposit until such time as the restrictions are
lifted

In April 2013 the controlling party sold their shares in the parent company to General Satellite

Holding Company Ltd, a company registered in Jersey The ultimate controlling party did not
change

In April 2013 the group increased its shareholdings m QJSC Concern Innovational Technologies
from 10% to 90% as the result of a capital contribution from the ultimate controlling party
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General Satellite Corporation Limited

Report of the Dir: r
for the Year Ended 31 December 2012

The director presents his report with the financial statements of the company for the year ended 31 December 2012

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY
The pringipal activity of the company n the year under review was that of holding of investments

REVIEW OF BUSINESS
Duning the year under review the Company sold two of its foreign subsidiartes  This has significantly improved
operating results from previous year No new investments were acquired 1n the year

DIVIDENDS
No dividends will be distributed for the year ended 31 December 2012

EVENTS SINCE THE END OF THE YEAR
Information relating to events since the end of the year 1s given in the notes to the financial statements

DIRECTOR
A Tkachenko held office during the whole of the period from 1 January 2012 to the date of this report

STATEMENT OF DIRECTOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES
The director 15 responsible for preparing the Report of the Director and the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the director to prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that law the director
has elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice (Unuted Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law) Under company law the director must not approve
the financial statements unless he 1s satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affatrs of the company and
of the profit or loss of the company for that period In preparing these financial statements, the director 15 required to

- select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,

- make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

- state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and
explained 1n the financial statements,

- prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless 1t 1s inappropnate to presume that the company will
continue 1n business

The director 1s responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
company's transacttons and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the company and
enable him to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 He 1s also responsible for
safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud
and other regularities

STATEMENT AS TO DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION TO AUDITORS

So far as the director 1s aware, there 15 no relevant audit mnformation (as defined by Section 418 of the Companies Act
2006) of which the company's auditors are unaware, and he has taken al! the steps that he ought to have taken as a
director n order to make himself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the company's auditors are
aware of that information
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llite Co ti imited

Report of the Dyrector
for the Year Ended 31 December 2012

AUDITORS
The auditors, SHL

es LLP, will be proposed for re-appointment at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting

ON BEHALF OF

X

A Tkachenko - Directbr

E BOARD:

Date
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Report of the Independent Auditors to the Members of
General Satelhite Corporation Limited

We have audited the financial statements of General Satellite Corporation Limited for the year ended 31 December 2012
on pages five to nineteen The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation 1s applicable law
and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)

This report 1s made solely to the company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006 Our audit work has been undertaken so that we mught state to the company's members those
matters we are required to state 10 them in a Report of the Auditors and for no other purpose To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responstbility to anyone other than the company and the company's
members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opimons we have formed

Respective responsibilities of director and auditors

As explained more fully m the Statement of Director's Responsibilities set out on page two, the director 1s responsible
for the preparatton of the financial statements and for bemng satisfied that they give a true and fair view Our
responsibility 1s to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and
International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland} Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices
Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit nvolves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures n the financial statements sufficient to give
reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from matenial misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error
This mncludes an assessment of whether the accounung policies are approprate to the company's circumstances and
have been consistently apphied and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
the director, and the overall presentation of the financial statements In addition, we read all the financial and
non-financial information in the Report of the Director to identify material inconsistencies with the audited financial
statements If we become aware of any apparent matenal misstatements or mconsistenctes we consider the implications
for our report

Opimion on financial statements

In our opinion the financial statements

- give a true and fair view of the state of the company's affairs as at 31 December 2012 and of its profit for the year
then ended,

- have been properly prepared in accordance with Umted Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, and

- have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opmion the information given n the Report of the Director for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared 1s consistent with the financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you

1if, n cur opinton

- adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for cur audit have not been received from
branches not visited by us, or

- the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and retums, or

- certan disclosures of director's remuneration specified by law are not made, or

- we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audn

Steven Landes (Senior Statutory Auditor) S\C \re AN ku AURCS

for and on behalf of § H Landes LLP
Statutory Auditors

3rd Floor

Fairgate House

78 New Oxford Street

London

WC1A 1HB

Date :3 (O \.}
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1 Satellite 100 Limited

fit and Accoun
for the Year Ended 31 December 2012

TURNOVER

Adminustrative expenses

Other operating income
OPERATING LOSS

Profit/loss on sale of
investments

Income from fixed asset investments
Interest recervable and sumlar mcome

Amounts written off investments

Interest payable and similar charges

PROFIT/(LLOSS) ON ORDINARY
ACTIVITIES BEFORE TAXATION

Tax on profit/(loss) on ordinary activitics

Notes

PROFIT/LOSS) FOR THE FINANCIAL

YEAR

CONTINUING OPERATIONS

311212
€ €

416,595
(416,595)
927

{415,668)

4,999,999
4,584,331

290,483

1,079,478

1,369,961
5,954,292
(8,602,128)

14,556,420

2,061,096

12,495,324

12,495,324

311z11
€ €

1,526,216
(1,526,216)
30,436

(1,495,780)

(1,495,780)

38,192

707,191

745,383
(750,397)

48,037
(798,434)

1,966,850

(2,765,284 )

(2,765,284)

None of the company's activities were acquired or discontinued during the current year or previous year

The notes form part of these financial statements
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ene Il orporati mi

tement of Total R 1 ins and
for the Year Ended 31 December 2012

PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR
Unreatised surplus on revaluation of other items

TOTAL RECOGNISED GAINS AND LOSSES
RELATING TO THE YEAR

jt1z12
€

12,495,324
9,205,753

21,701,077

The notes form part of these financial statements
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311211
€

(2,765,284)
1,185,606

(1,579,678)




eneral Satellite Corporation Limited (R

Balance Sheet
31 December 2012

FIXED ASSETS
Intangible assets
Tangible assets
Investments

CURRENT ASSETS
Debtors
Cash at bank

CREDITORS
Amounts falling due within one year

NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES

CREDITORS
Amounts falling due after more than one
year

NET ASSETS/(LIABILITIES)

CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Called up share capital
Revaluation reserve

Profit and loss account

SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS

1
The financial shtethents were approved by the director on

A 'i"kachenko Director

istered number; 04502928

Notes

o0

11

12

15
16
16

21

31212
€ €

2,484
103,649
37,481,564

37,587,697

6,183,425

6,119,848

12,303,273
170,346

12,132,927

49,720,624

42,366,278

7,354,346

176,298
10,391,359
(3,213,311)

7,354,346

The notes form part of these financial statements
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311211
€ €

3,133

26,708

19,673,112

19,702,953
2,225,546
27,351,006
29,576,552
623,100

28,953,452

48,656,405

63,003,136

(14,346,731)

57,508
1,185,606
(15,589,845 )

(14,346,731

29 l Y \ (I8 and were signed by




neral 1 oration Limited

Cash Flow Statement
for the Year Ended 31 December 2012

311212 311211
Notes € € € €

Net cash outflow
from operating activihes 1 (115,250) (10,076,723)
Returns on investments and
servicing of finance 2 1,300,414 (1,221,467)
Capital expenditure
and financial investment 2 162,261 (805,344}

1,347,425 (12,103,534}
Financing 2 (22,578,569) 12,246,372
(Decrease)/increase in cash n the period (21,231,144) 142,838
Reconcihation of net cash flow
to movement in net debt 3
(Decrease)increase
1n cash 1n the period (21,231,144) 142,838
Cash outflow/(inflow)
from decrease/(increase) in debt 22,578,569 (63,003,136)
Change 1n net debt resulting
from cash flows 1,347,425 (62,860,298)
Foreign exchange 119,385 -
Loan interest accrued (2,061,096) -
Movement in net debt in the period (594,286) (62,860,298)
Net (debt)/funds at 1 January (35,652,144} 27,208,154
Net debt at 31 December (35,652,144)

(36,246,430 )

The notes form part of these financial statements
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I Satellite Co ion Limited

he Cash Flo ement

for the Year Ended 31 December 2012

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING LOSS TO NET CASH OUTFLOW FROM OPERATING

ACTIVITIES

Operating loss

Depreciation charges

Foreign exchange
Decrease/(increase) in debtors
Decrease i creditors

Net cash outflow from operating activities

311212 311211
€ €
(415,668)  (1,495,780)
11,446 8,387
(119,955) -
861,667  (1,874,331)
(452,740)  (6,714,999)
(115250) (10,076,723 )

ANALYSIS OF CASH FLOWS FOR HEADINGS NETTED IN THE CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Returns on investments and servicing of finance
Interest recetved

Interest paid

Dividends recerved

Net cash inflow/(outflow) for returns on investments and servicing of

finance

Capital expenditure and financial investment
Purchase of intangible fixed assets

Purchase of tangible fixed assets

Purchase of fixed asset investments

Sale of fixed asset investments

Net cash inflow/(outflow) for capital expenditure and financial

investment

Financing
New loans in year
Loan repayments in year

Net cash (outflow)/mflow from financing

The notes form part of these financial statements

Page 9

311212 311211
€ €
1,009,931 707,191
- (1,966,850)
290,483 38,192
1300414  (1,221,467)
(318) (4,000)
(87,421) (7,622)
- (812,452)
250,000 18,730
162,261 (805,344)
1,150,000 12,246,372
(23,728,569 ) -
(22,578,569) 12,246,372




eneral Ihite Co ) pmit

otes to th ment
for the Year Ended 31 December 2012

3

ANALYSIS OF CHANGES IN NET DEBT

Other
non-cash At
Atl112 Cash flow changes 311212
€ € € €
Net cash
Cash at bank and 1n hand 27,351,006 (21,231,158) 6,119,848
Bank overdraft (14) 14 -
27,350,992 (21,231,144) 6,119,848
Debt
Debts falling due
after one year (63,003,136) 22,578,569 (1,941,711)  (42,366,278)
(63,003,136) 22,578,569 (1,941,711)  (42,366,278)
Total (35,652,144) 1,347,425 (1,941,711)  (36,246,430)

The notes form part of these financial statements
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General Satellite Corporation_Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the Year Ended 31 December 2012

1

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Accounting convention
The financial statements have been prepared under the stoncal cost convention as modified by the revaluation
of certain assets and are 1n accordance with applicable accounting standards

Intangible assets - patents
Patents are valued at cost less accumulated amortisation Amortisation 15 calculated to write off the cost in equal
annual instalments over their estimated useful life of 3 and 4 years

Tangible fixed assets
Depreciation 1s provided at rates calculated to wnte off the cost or valuation less residual value of each asset
over 1ts expected useful Life, as follows

Land and buildings straight line over 20 years
Fixture and fittings straight line over 4 years

Deferred tax

The charge for taxation takes into account taxation deferred as a result of timing differences between the
treatment of certain tems for taxation and accounting purposes In general, deferred taxation 1s recogmsed in
respect of all tsiming differences that have ongmated but not reversed at the balance sheet date However,
deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that the directors consider that it 1s more likely than not that
there will be suitable taxable profits from which the future reversal of the underlying tiimng differences can be
deducted Deferred taxation 15 measured on a non-discounted basis at the tax rates that are expected to apply
the pertods 1n which the timing differences reverse, based on tax rates and laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date

Foreign currencies

Assets and habilities 1n foreign currencies are translated into Euros at the rates of exchange ruling at the balance
sheet date  Transactions in foretgn currencies are translated into Euros at the rate of exchange ruling at the date
of transaction Exchange differences are taken into account in arnving at the operating result

Fixed assets investments

Fixed asset investments are stated at market value Market valuations are esttmated by external valuers or by the
directors using discounted cash flow techniques Any profit arising on revaluation 1s taken to the revaluation
reserve and any diminution n value below cost 1s taken to the profit and loss account Where the diminution 1n
value of a fixed asset investment has been charged to the profit and loss account, but the circumstances giving
nise to the diminution have reversed to any extent, the provision 15 written back to the extent that 1t is no longer
necessary

STAFF COSTS

311212 311211

€ €

Wages and salanes 184,348 198,836
Social security costs 62,726 68,120

247,074 266,956
The average monthly number of employees during the year was as follows

311212 3t1211
Management 10 11

Page 11 continued




General Satellite Corporation Limited

0 he Financial Statements - continued
for the Year Ended 31 December 2012

3 OPERATING LOSS

The operating loss 15 stated after charging/(crediting)

il1212 311211
€ €
Other operating leases 8,550 10,209
Depreciation - owned assets 10,480 7,520
Patents and hicences amortisation 967 867
Auditors' remuneration 33,598 27,535
Foreign exchange differences (48,132) 80,980
Director's remuneration - -
4 INTEREST RECEIVABLE AND SIMILAR INCOME
11212 311211
€ €
Deposit account interest 936,949 657,916
Loan interest receivable 142,529 49,275
1,079,478 707,191
5 AMOUNTS WRITTEN OFF INVESTMENTS
311212 311211
€ €
Impatrment reversal (8,602,128} -
Impairment - 48,037
(8,602,128) 48,037
6 INTEREST PAYABLE AND SIMILAR CHARGES
311212 311211
€ €
Interest payable 2,061,096 1,966,850

7 TAXATION

Analysis of the tax charge
No hability to UK corporation tax arose on ordinary activities for the year ended 31 December 2012 nor for the
year ended 31 December 2011

Page 12 continued




General Satelite Corporation Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued
for the Year Ended 31 December 2012

7 TAXATION - contmued
Factors affecting the tax charge

The tax assessed for the year 15 lower than the standard rate of corporation tax mn the UK The difference 1s
explamned below

311212 311211
€ €
Profit/(loss) on ordinary activities before tax 12,495,324 (2,765,284)
Profit/(loss) on ordinary activities
multiphied by the standard rate of corporation tax
mn the UK of 24 500% (2011 - 26 500%) 3,061,354 (732,800)
Effects of
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes - 12,823
Income not taxable for tax purposes (3,403,690) -
Depreciation 1n excess of capital allowances 2,431 203
Losses carried forward 339,905 719,774
Current tax charge - -
8 INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS
Patents
and
licences
€
COST
At 1 January 2012 4,000
Additions 318
At 31 December 2012 4318
AMORTISATION
At | January 2012 867
Amortisation for year 967
At 31 December 2012 1,834
NET BOOK VALUE
At 31 December 2012 2,484
At 31 December 2011 3,133
Page 13 contmued




General Satellite Corporation Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued
for the Year Ended 31 December 2012

9 TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

COST

At 1 January 2012
Additions

At 31 December 2012
DEPRECIATION
At | January 2012
Charge for year

At 31 December 2012

NET BOOK VALUE
At 31 December 2012

At 31 December 2011

10 FIXED ASSET INVESTMENTS

COST OR VALUATION
At 1 January 2012
Dnsposals

Revaluations

At 31 December 2012

PROVISIONS
At 1 January 2012

Elimmated on disposal
Provision written back

At 31 December 2012

NET BOOK VALUE
At 31 December 2012

At 31 December 2011

Page 14

Fixtures
Freehold and
property fittings Totals
€ € €
- 37,037 37,037
§7,000 421 87,421
87,000 37,458 124,458
- 10,329 10,329
1,300 9,180 10,480
1,300 19,509 20,809
85,700 17,549 103,649
- 26,708 26,708

Shares 1n

group
undertakings
€

28,298,031
(4,084)
9,206,324

37,500,271

8,624,919

(4,084)
(8,602,128)

18,707

37,481,564

19,673,112

continued
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10

FIXED ASSET INVESTMENTS - continued

Cost or valuation at 31 December 2012 1s represented by

Valuation in 2012
Valuation 1n 2011
Cost

Shares in
group
undertakings
€
9,205,753
1,185,606
27,108,912

37,500,271

Market value of the company's holding in IT Concern was independently valued by Emst and Young on 30
September 2012 The market value of the company's holdings in Neotion SA was estimated by the directors as at

31 December 2012 using discounted cash flow techmques

The company's investments at the balance sheet date in the share capital of companies include the following

General Satellite GmbH
Country of incorporation Germany
Nature of business High-tech radio electronic equipment

Class of shares
Ordinary

Aggregate capital and reserves
Profit for the year

Neotion S.A
Country of incorporatton France
Nature of business High-tech radio electronic equipment

Class of shares

Ordinary

Aggregate capital and reserves
Profit for the year

0JSC Concern Innovation Technology
Country of incorporation Russia
Nature of business High-tech radio electronic equipment

Class of shares
Ordinary

Aggregate capital and reserves
Profit for the year

Page 15

%
holding
100 00
iz
€
(163,195)
47,566
%
holding
94 00
311211
€
9,100,414
3,443,012
%
holding
1000
311z n
€
11,880,000

3,171,000
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for the Year Ended 31 December 2012

10

FIXED ASSET INVESTMENTS - continued

General Satellite Research & Development Limited
Country of incorporation England
Nature of business High-tech radio electronic equipment

Class of shares
Ordinary

Aggregate capital and reserves
Profit for the year

General Satellite Group AG
Country of incorporation Switzerland
Nature of business High-tech radio electronic equipment

Class of shares
Ordinary

Agpgrepate capital and reserves
Loss for the year

Extended Secure Technologies
Country of incorporation Netherlands
Nature of business High-tech radio electronic equipment

Class of shares

Ordinary

Aggregate capital and reserves
Loss for the year

%
holding
100 00

%
holding
100 00

%
holding
100 00

3r1z11
€
207,310
72,333

31211
€
116,387

(17,961)

nizn
€

(1,243,150)
(1,130,875)

Operating results for the year and aggregate capital and reserves are based on last year's financial statements,

being the last financial statements available at the time of preparation of these financial statements

During the year the company disposed of two of its subsidianies General Satellite Sofia Limited and General
Satellite Plovdiv Limited, realising a profit on disposal of €4,999,999

DEBTORS

Amounts falling due within one year
Amounts owed by group undertakings
Other debtors

Prepayments

Page 16

11212 311211
€ €
1,398,864 75,286
4,750,489 935,466

321 5,594
6,149,674 1,016,346
continued
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¢ Financial Statements - ¢continued

for the Year Ended 31 December 2012

DEBTORS - continued

Amounts falling due after more than one year
Amounts owed by group undertakings

Aggregate amounts

CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR

Bank loans and overdrafts (see note 14)
Social secunty and other taxes

Other creditors

Amounts due to group

undertakings

Durector's current account

Wages and salaries control

Accruals and deferred income

CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE AFTER MORE THAN ONE

YEAR

Other loans (see note 14)

LOANS

An analysis of the maturity of loans 1s given below

Amounts falling due within one year or on demand
Bank overdrafts

Amounts falling due between one and two years
Other loans - 1-2 years

Amounts falling due between two and five years
Other loans - 2-5 years

CALLED UP SHARE CAPITAL

Allotted, 1ssued and fully paid

Number Class Nomuinal
value

148,500 Ordinary £1 00

311212 311211
€ €

33,751 1,209,200

6,183,425 2,225,546

31212 311211
€ €

- 14

17,242 18,485

1,165 5,393

- 560,569

72,594 -

9,958 11,104

69,387 27,535

170,346 623,100

311212 311211
€ €

42366278 63,003,136

311212 311211
€ €

- 14

42,366,278 .

- 63,003,136

311212 311211
€ €

176,298

57,508

99,000 Ordmary shares of £1 00 each were allotted as fully paid as a bonus 1ssue out of reserves during the year

continued
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for the Year Ended 31 December 2012

RESERVES
Profit
and loss Revaluation
account reserve Totals
€ € €

At 1 January 2012 (15,589,845) 1,185,606 (14,404,239)
Profit for the year 12,495,324 12,495,324
Bonus share 1ssue (118,790) - (118,790)
Revaluation of investments - 9,205,753 9,205,753
At 31 December 2012 (3,213,311) 10,391,359 7,178,048

TRANSACTIONS WITH DIRECTOR

The following loan to directors subsisted during the years ended 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011

311212 itizn
€ €
A Tkachenko
Balance outstanding at start of year 929,388 -
Amounts advanced - 929,388
Amounts repaid (929,388) -
Balance outstanding at end of year - 929,388

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

At the end of the year there was a balance due of €1,279,484 (2011 - €1,209,200) with interest charged to the
company of €70,284 (2011 - €39,181) from Extended Secure Technologies BV, a company registered in
Netherlands and a 100% subsicdiary of General Satellite Corperation Limited Thus balance was fully recovered
after the year end

At the year end there was a balance due of €119,191 (2011 - €38,251) from OJSC "Concern Innovative
Technologies”, a company registered in Russia General Satellite Corporation Limited owns 10% of the share
capital of the company and exercises dominant influence by virtue of control and mfluence on the operating and
financial policies of QJSC "Concern Innovative Technologies”

At the year end there was a balance due of €33,751 (2011 - €37,036) with interest charged to the company of
€1,315 (2011 - €33) from General Satelhte Group AG, a company registered in Switzerland and a 100%
subsidiary of General Satellite Corporation Limited

At the year end there was a balance due of €nil (2011 - €560,569) to General Satellite Research and
Development Limited, a company registered m England and a 100% subsidiary of General Satellite Corporation
Linuted

At the end of the year there was a balance of €72,594 (2011 - €ml) due to Mr A Tkachenko, director of the
company

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS
Management plans exist to restructure General Satellite trading group In Apnl 2013 Mr A Tkachenko will be
transfernng hus sharcholdings 1n General Satellite Corporation Limited to General Satellite Holding Company

Limited On the same date General Satellite Corporation Limited will 1ssue 6 million additional shares at par to
General Satellite Holding Company Limited

Page 18 continued
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ULTIMATE CONTROLLING PARTY

The ultimate controlling party 1s A Tkachenko

RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENTS IN SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS

Profit/(toss) for the financial year
Other recognised gains and losses
relating to the year (net)

Net addition/(reduction) to shareholders' funds
Opening shareholders’ funds

Closing shareholders' funds

Page 19

311212 311211
€ €
12,495,324 (2,765,284)
9,205,753 1,185,606
21,701,077 (1,579,678)
(14,346,731) (12,767,053)
7,354,346 (14,346,731)




